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ABOUT US
E R

Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited is a leading
global intimate wear company that innovates, designs and
manufactures a wide range of intimate wear and functional
sports products for leading global brands through an innovative
design manufacturer (“IDM”) business model. The Group

has developed itself into the industry’s number one bra
manufacturing company globally. Regina Miracle offers a range
of intimate wear products, which include bras, sports bras,

bra pads and functional sports products, which include sports
footwear, functional seamless sportswear.
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The board of directors (the “"Board”) of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited (“Regina Miracle” or the
“Company”) is pleased to announce the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (“Fiscal 2016"), together with the
comparative figures for the corresponding year in 2015 (“Fiscal
2015").

COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MHHE
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Year ended 31 March

Revenue WA

Gross profit EH

Profit attributable to owners of RAEHB AEEET
the Company

Adjusted net profit for the year"®? & FgE 4 7 V*

Gross profit margin (%) EME(%)
Net profit margin (%) FERIE(%)
Adjusted net profit margin (%) V% 4& R4 FI| %R (%) 1542

Earnings per share — basic and BREMN-EXR
diluted #a
Proposed final dividend per share  &A%iEsa R EANES

Notes:

(1) Adjusted net profit is derived by adding listing expenses and deducting
gains on derivative financial instruments and excluding the related tax
impact from the net profit for the year.

(2) This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure that
is not required by, or presented in accordance with, HKFRSs and is
therefore referred to as a “non-GAAP" financial measure. It is not a
measurement of the Group's financial performance under HKFRSs and
should not be considered as an alternative to profit from operations or any
other performance measures derived in accordance with HKFRSs or as an
alternative to cash flows from operating activities or as a measure of the
Group's liquidity.

HE3A31HILLEE
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
5,081,774 4,192,009 +21.2%
1,254,147 979,384 +28.1%
442,054 337,806 +30.9%
475,477 341,343 +39.3%
24.7% 23.4% +13ppEDE
8.7% 8.1% +0.6ppE D
9.4% 8.1% +1.3ppENEH

HK cents HK cents
AL B
42.2 38.2 +10.5%
5.6 - NA 3 A
M3E
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CHAIRMAN'S
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On behalf of the Board of the Company and the Group, I'm pleased
to present to all shareholders the annual report of the Group for
Fiscal 2016.

This is the first annual report of the Group since its listing on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) on 8 October 2015 (the “Listing
Date”).

ACHIEVING A MILESTONE

In 2015, Regina Miracle has opened a new chapter in the history
of its development. The Group was officially listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and gained access to
international capital markets. | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to our investors for their trust in our management team
throughout the process of the global offering, casting a vote of
confidence in the future development prospects of the Group. This
has paved the way for the successful completion of and positive
feedback from the investment market for the Group's initial public
offering despite the volatility in global equity markets.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERHE

YY Hung Chairman
HEE
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Although the global economy was uncertain last year, by
leveraging its leading-edge IDM business model, Regina Miracle
is committed to providing our partners with high value-added and
integrated IDM services ranging from product concept design,
material and technological development, function and specification
design to production. During the year, the Group has successfully
strengthened its cooperation with its top-tier global brand partners
by designing and manufacturing various innovative, comfortable and
fashionable intimate wear and functional sports products for them,
thus advanced the development of Regina Miracle and its partners.

The management team has been encouraged by the satisfying
results presented in the Group's first annual report to its investors
upon listing. In Fiscal 2016, the revenue of the Group exceeded
HK$5,000 million to HK$5,081.8 million, representing a significant
increase of 21.2% as compared with HK$4,192.0 million in Fiscal
2015. Adjusted net profit for the year grew significantly with a year-
on-year increase of 39.3% to approximately HK$475.5 million (Fiscal
2015: approximately HK$341.3 million).

The Board has kept its promise of sharing the fruits of development
with shareholders and proposed to declare a final dividend of HK5.6
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2016.

During the year under review, although there was an upward trend
in the US economy, the overall business environment remains
challenging owing to factors such as the unresolved sovereign
debt crisis in some European nations and the slowdown of China’s
economic growth.

However, as a traditional Chinese proverb says, “In the midst of
chaos, there is also opportunity”. The decrease in international
oil prices and the depreciation of the Renminbi in China last year
instead alleviated the pressure of raw material and labour costs of
the Group.

Meanwhile, we proactively adopted a modernized manufacturing
system and effectively implemented the advanced information
technology platform, including the SAP, Fast React production
control and RFID systems in order to increase production efficiency.
Under the objective environment and through the concerted
efforts of our teams, the gross profit of the Group rose 28.1% to
HK$1,254.1 million for the year under review with a year-on-year
increase in gross profit margin to 24.7%.

MRBE—FRIREERERS - BHDE
BEESIENRIDMEBER - B RAE
BHEHRERBSBEE - REMBMEE
B RERRRA N EERESHINEER
FAHIDMRT - REARBIERHRT R
SUEZ AR - FELRREHRNFAK
MBI EBRE SR - KR RIRE L mIE
BESERE  UEEDRESAESIERH
BFE -

FEERERBIEENR  ARERLETE
MEEEERNENEFEERERER
18 o FR2016814F - A& E B e =R E 50
BT > EEE¥5,081.8BE T 201581
FHBH4,192.08 BILARIER21.2% © F
RS A B AL R F R IR K 39.3% E 481

4755 B &L (201681 F « 4)8%341.38 &8
JL) ©

EECERERROZTRHEXRNEAE &
HTIREZE2016F3A31H IEFERAREK
B AEI5.6/81

REEFR - #EAXBLEZRIER - B
MZ B REBBEIDRER - N EhEL
EEENGESFER  SERBEHRENAR
mPE o

A PEERESE K] BHEE
FEBRBE TR RTRARSEESER
= A Bh&F BUAN 58 B R 4 K 85 B A AN ) JBE
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B EE - ZPEESEARAMEEESER
VTERERLENEMBIE TS 881
SAP - Fast React4 &= %1l X RFIDE R4t -
LBAEERER - ERBIRENEBARSE
AT AEBNEFNRLBBEFREUEE
28.1% EE#1,254 1 A& TC © EFIRIMLF
IRFE247% °
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During the year, driven by the consumers’ ever-increasing demand
for highly-functional, comfortable and plain bras, the Group has
recorded considerable growth in bras, intimate wear, bra pads and
other businesses (including sports bras, panties, shape wear and
others), which further strengthened the Group’s leading position as
the industry’s leading bra IDM globally.

The bra and intimate wear segment has continued to be the major
revenue contributor bringing a stable cash inflow to Regina Miracle.
Leveraging its solid research and development ("R&D") capability
and inspired by a pursuit of innovation as a corporate value, the
Group believes that its products can continue to be embraced by its
business partners and the market and achieve a satisfactory sales
performance, and thereby create a win-win situation for both of our
business and our business partners.

It is noteworthy that, with the general trend of increasing health
awareness among consumers, the significant rise in demand for
comfortable sports intimate wear has stimulated the global sports
bras market for the past two years to grow rapidly. Regina Miracle's
pursuit in functional sports bras in terms of “Innovation”, “Speed”
and “Quality"” has received positive feedback and recognition
from our existing and new brand partners and, in turn, fuelled a
substantial growth in sports bras orders of the Group, resulting in
revenue growth of up to 21.1% from bras, sports bras and intimate
wear businesses during the year under review.

On the other hand, the functional sports product business which
we have progressively developed in recent years, continued to
expand steadily through the support of the strong cross-industry
innovation capability and advanced technology of the Group.
According to the latest research published by Allied Market
Research, the global sportswear market has been projected to
generate revenue of more than US$184.6 billion in 2020, indicating
the enormous business opportunities in the global sports products
market.

The detailed analysis of the market surveys and research conducted
by our team showed that the potential for development of high-
quality, comfortable and highly-functional sports products is even
larger, thus we are highly optimistic about the Group's business
prospects of its functional sports products. In the future, we
will continue to leverage our strong research and development
capability and our core technology and focus on the innovation and
development of sports products with high added value with an aim
of growing together with quality partners so as to consolidate our
close partnerships.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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ARMING OURSELVES PROACTIVELY
AND ACHIEVING MUTUAL BENEFIT WITH
PARTNERS

Following the Group's successful listing, we have more
abundant financial resources for exploring opportunities in large-
scale international markets. With the aim to seize the massive
opportunities in the global intimate wear and functional sports
products industries, we are actively expanding our production
facilities and enhancing our production capacity overseas and in
Mainland China. The first facility located at Vietnam Singapore
Industrial Park (“VSIP") in Thuy Nguyen District, Hai Phong City,
Vietnam has commenced production in mid-March 2016, which
marked a new milestone of the Group’s overseas expansion plan.

This first major facility which marked the beginning of our
production expansion in Vietnam has a gross floor area (“GFA")
of 174,000 sg.m, with maximum production capacity up to
approximately 46,000,000 units per year. It focuses on the
production of bras and intimate wear. Operations have run smoothly
since its official commencement of production. We expect that all
of the production lines will be commissioned by August this year
which will further enhance the productivity of the Group by then.

In addition, we will continue to be active, as we plan to establish
three additional facilities in Vietnam according to our proposed
development roadmap. Of these, the construction work of the
second facility, also located at the VSIP in Hai Phong City, Vietnam
with a GFA of 159,000 sq.m has been completed in June this
year. It is expected that the facility will commence production in
the fourth quarter of this year as scheduled. Moreover, our third
and fourth facilities which are under planning in Vietnam will start
construction in 2016 and are expected to commence operation by
the first and third quarter of 2018, respectively.

BERE HAFERHEEHRR

BEEASERY LW - RS EHEENE
BEREERANBERSES L5 - RICES
BREE S AR NI BB R EMITEMNEAR
A - RAIEEBEEIN P B AR A E
R SR AERE © B LR EE AP KRR
MEET N TEE(TVSIP) W EBKREZ R
2016F3ATBLEARE - BT EAEEE
SMERAT BB 23 R
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EHE([HEEEBE])174,000F 5K © &
= FFEBE A 4= 4946,000,0001F B ENAE
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BANEE  BRGE—TRATNEENEE
BEN o
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First Vietnam Facility

EES ]

10 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiRBE(ER)ERA A



Upon ratification of the Trans-Pacific Strategic Economic Partnership
Agreement (“TPP"), Vietnam, as a member state of TPP, will be
entitled to preferential tariff in the export of clothing and textile
products among members. Several long-term brand partners
of the Group have boosted their order volume for production in
Vietnam. With our presence in Vietnam and a plan for expansion of
productivity, we would possess an first mover advantage to accept
more orders from existing and new brand partners.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to allocate substantial
resources for cross-industry and cross-production-line technology
innovation and R&D, and to launch groundbreaking technologies
and products ultimately aimed at strengthening the cooperation
with existing brand partners. In addition to a continuous expansion
of our intimate wear business and strengthening of our leading
market position in the bra industry, we will also continue to expand
our business in functional sports products, in order to diversify our
revenue sources and solidify our customer base to further upgrade
the core competitiveness of the Group.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

IR;E
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Third Vietnam Facility (Under planning)
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Second Vietnam Facility
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Fourth Vietnam Facility (Under planning)
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Furthermore, a pool of talent is the key to success for any
corporation. Accordingly, we will continue to proactively invest
in the cultivation of human resources, so as to establish a talent
reserve through the means of school-enterprise collaboration and
strive to create a favorable working environment for employees as
a whole.

We strongly believe that vigorous capabilities in R&D, constant
innovation, application of advanced technologies and strategic
expansion of production capacity will facilitate the Group to
continue to thrive with mutual benefits for our partners. We will
strive to consolidate the Group's leading global position in intimate
wear through the IDM model with the objective of achieving
long-term sustainable growth and creating the best return for our
shareholders.

In conclusion, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
deep gratitude to all of the members of the Board, our management
team, business partners and all colleagues for their contribution and
dedicated efforts for the development of the Group.

YY Hung
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 June 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

MARKET REVIEW

During the year under review, the market environment has been
challenging. However, as an IDM, Regina Miracle has a competitive
advantage over its rivals for its innovation and R&D as it is able to
deliver and sell its innovative ideas to the world’s leading brands,
many of which have close cooperative partnerships with the Group.

It is worth noting as well that overall raw material prices have
fallen to some extent as the result of lower crude oil prices and
excess upstream supply, while depreciation of Renminbi also
helped reign in the cost of labor. Such developments have been
favorable for the Group as the overall costs have declined while
the prices of its products have remained relatively stable. Another
positive development is TPP signed on 4 February 2016, which
when it comes into force, will increase the appeal of Vietnam as a
manufacturing hub. Given that the Group's first production facility
in Vietnam started operation in March 2016, plus the Group's
concrete expansion plans, Regina Miracle is well positioned to seize
fresh opportunities ahead.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Regina Miracle achieved a major milestone with its listing on
the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 8 October
2015, and is pleased to report its first annual results since this
significant achievement. For the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Group recorded total revenue of HK$5,081.8 million, a year-on-
year increase of 21.2%. Gross profit climbed 28.1% to HK$1,254.1
million, due primarily to lower raw materials costs and its ability to
further enhance production efficiency. Net profit rose by 30.9%
to HK$442.1 million. After adding listing expenses and deducting
net gains on derivative financial instruments, and excluding related
taxes, the adjusted net profit of the Group for the reporting year
amounts to HK$475.5 million, up 39.3% from last year.

Note: The Trans-Pacific Partnership (TPP) is a free trade agreement (FTA) among
twelve Pacific-rim countries, namely New Zealand, Australia, Brunei
Darussalam, Canada, Chile, Japan, Malaysia, Mexico, Peru, Singapore,
the United States and Vietnam. TPP was signed on 4 February 2016 In
Auckland, New Zealand. It will not enter into force until all TPP signatories
complete their respective domestic treaty ratification processes for the
TPP or at least six original signatories representing 85% of the total GDP
of the twelve original signatories have successfully ratified the agreement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK5.6 cents
per share for the first financial year following Regina Miracle’s
listing, representing a distribution of approximately 30.5% of the
Group's net profit for the period from the Listing Date to 31 March
2016. The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting to be
held on Wednesday, 31 August 2016. If approved by shareholders,
the proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or about
Tuesday, 20 September 2016 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 8
September 2016.

THE GROUP’S OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue

The Group's revenue is primarily derived from direct sales of its
products. The total revenue increased by 21.2% from HK$4,192.0
million in Fiscal 2015 to HK$5,081.8 million in Fiscal 2016, primarily
due to an increased demand from its customers on sports bras,
molded sports footwear uppers, and sports footwear. A comparison
of the Group’s revenue for Fiscal 2016 and Fiscal 2015 by product
categories is as follows:
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Year ended 31 March
EZE3ANBLEE

2016

20164
% of
Revenue
L ON]
BAl

HK$'000

BETT

2015 Change
2015% &

% of
Revenue
fEHRAH)

Ant

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT AL

Bras and intimate wear E R HRK 3,561,151 701 2,941,077 70.2 620,074 211

Bra pads and other molded TR & E A AR R
products Em 964,563 19.0 774,793 18.5 189,770 245
Functional sports products e MHESBEM 556,060 10.9 476,139 113 79,921 16.8
5,081,774 100.0 4,192,009 100.0 889,765 212

Revenue generated from sales of bras and intimate wear increased
by HK$620.1 million, or 21.1%, from HK$2,941.1 million in Fiscal
2015 to HK$3,561.2 million in Fiscal 2016. The increase was
primarily due to the increase in sales volume of bras, in particular
sports bras. Revenue generated from sales of bras and intimate
wear as a percentage of the Group's total revenue remained
relatively stable in Fiscal 2015 and Fiscal 2016.

SHE I E AL 5 NKFTE £ IR A 201581 F
2,941 1B E LG INERE620.1 B BT
21.1%Z2016% F#%3,661.28 87T © &0
DEZHAME(CEREHNE)HE=S £
FHETER ° 201581 F & 201651 F §4 & g B K b
FAXKAEERAGREBRABIENET S

FEAEFFREARRE -

FFIR4E2015/16 ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

Revenue generated from sales of bra pads and other molded
products amounted to HK$964.6 million in Fiscal 2016, representing
an increase of HK$189.8 million, or 24.5%, as compared to Fiscal
2015. While sales of bra pads remained relatively stable, the
growth in revenue was mainly due to increase in sales of molded
sports footwear uppers. Revenue generated from sales of bra pads
and other molded products as a percentage of the Group's total
revenue remained relatively stable in Fiscal 2015 and Fiscal 2016.

Revenue generated from sales of functional sports products
increased by HK$79.9 million, or 16.8%, from HK$476.1 million in
Fiscal 2015 to HK$556.1 million in Fiscal 2016. The increase was
primarily due to the increase in sales volume of sports footwear.
Revenue generated from sales of functional sports products as a
percentage of the Group's total revenue remained relatively stable
in Fiscal 2015 and Fiscal 2016.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales primarily consists of cost of raw materials, employee
benefit expenses for personnel directly involved in the Group's
production activities, depreciation of its production equipment and
others.
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Year ended 31 March
EZE3ANBLEE

2016

20165
% of
Revenue
LT ON]
BO

HK$'000

BETT

2015 Change
20155 L&)

% of
Revenue
fEU AR

Bat  EBETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT

Costs of raw materials [RM BB AR 1,827,479 36.0 1,687,928 40.3 139,551 8.3
Employee benefit expenses EERMEX 1,573,497 31.0 1,155,996 27.6 417,501 36.1
Depreciation wE 109,327 2.2 104,032 2.5 5,295 5.1
Others Hith 317,324 6.1 264,669 6.2 52,655 19.9

3,827,627 753 3,212,625 76.6 615,002 19.1

Cost of sales as a percentage of total revenue decreased from
76.6% in Fiscal 2015 to 75.3% in Fiscal 2016. It was primarily
attributable to decrease in the cost of raw materials as a percentage
of the Group's total revenue.

Cost of sales increased from HK$3,212.6 million in Fiscal 2015
to HK$3,827.6 million in Fiscal 2016 primarily due to increases in
costs of raw materials as a result of increased sales, increases in
employee benefit expenses as a result of an uplift of the minimum
wage floor in the PRC as well as the increased headcount for
production.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

R E T

EMRERR

Year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MBLEE

2016
2016

Gross Profit

Gross Profit margin
E ERE
HK$'000 %
BYTT BAL

Gross Profit

2015
20156
Gross Profit
margin
=TI = 1]
HK$'000 %
BT Bntt

HK$'000
BT

Bras and intimate wear T KBk & M 828,897 23.3 648,897 22.1 180,000 27.7

Bra pads and other molded TR R E AR
products Em 273,463 284 220,542 285 52,921 24.0
Functional sports products Dige it EBEER 151,787 213 109,945 23.1 41,842 38.1
1,254,147 24.7 979,384 234 274,763 28.1

The Group's overall gross profit increased from HK$979.4 million
in Fiscal 2015 to HK$1,254.1 million in Fiscal 2016. The gross profit
margin in Fiscal 2016 increased by 130 basis points to 24.7%,
as compared to 23.4% in Fiscal 2015. The improved gross profit
margin was mainly driven by the lower raw material costs as a
percentage of the Group's total revenue and the increased cost
effectiveness brought by improvements in production efficiency
and economies of scale as a result of the continual expansion.

The gross profit margin of bras and intimate wear increased from
22.1% in Fiscal 2015 to 23.3% in Fiscal 2016, primarily due to full
ramp-up of the Group's newly added production lines, as well as
further improvements of production efficiency.

The gross profit margin of bra pads and other molded products was
relatively stable in Fiscal 2015 and Fiscal 2016.

The gross profit margin of functional sports products increased
from 23.1% in Fiscal 2015 to 27.3% in Fiscal 2016 primarily due to
the full ramp-up of the Group's production lines of sports footwear,
and increased cost effectiveness brought by improvements in
production efficiency and economies of scale as a result of the
continual expansion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

Other income

Other income of the Group consists primarily of scrap sales income
and government grants. Increase in other income by HK$9.4 million
from HK$3.8 million in Fiscal 2015 to HK$13.2 million in Fiscal
2016, was primarily attributable to grants of government subsidies
amounted HK$8.6 million in the year.

Other gains

Other gains consist of gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial
assets and gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. The Group recorded other gains of HK$3.7 million in Fiscal
2016 as compared to HK$0.9 million in Fiscal 2015.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses primarily consist of freight and
transportation expenses, employee benefit expenses for the
Group's sales personnel, traveling expenses, declaration charges,
marketing and promotion expenses and others. Distribution and
selling expenses as a percentage of total revenue increased from
1.9% in Fiscal 2015 to 2.4% in Fiscal 2016 primarily due to increase
in freight and transportation expenses.

Distribution and selling expenses increased by 56.4% from
HK$79.3 million in Fiscal 2015 to HK$124.1 million in Fiscal 2016.
The increase was primarily attributable to increase in employee
benefit expenses as a result of increased headcount of sales
personnel, and increase in freight and transportation expenses
as a result of more air freight expenses were incurred in Fiscal
2016 for fulfilling increased customers’ demand under the Group’s
production capacity constraint.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of employee
benefit expenses for the Group’'s administrative personnel,
depreciation and amortization, other taxes and surcharges, building
management fee, insurance, operating lease rental of land and
buildings, office and administrative expenses, bank charges,
exchange loss or gain and others. General and administrative
expenses as a percentage of total revenue decreased from 7.3%
in Fiscal 2015 to 7.0% in Fiscal 2016 primarily due to the Group's
enhanced operational efficiency as well as greater economies of
scale.

General and administrative expenses increased by 16.3% from
HK$305.0 million in Fiscal 2015 to HK$354.7 million in Fiscal 2016.
The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in employee
benefit expenses as a result of an uplift of the minimum wage floor
in the PRC as well as the increased headcount of administrative
personnel to support the Group's growing business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Research and development costs

Research and development costs consist of employee benefit
expenses for the research and development personnel, raw
materials and consumables used and others. Research and
development costs have remained relatively stable at 3.0% of total
revenue in Fiscal 2015 and Fiscal 2016.

Research and development costs increased by 20.0% from
HK$125.8 million in Fiscal 2015 to HK$151.0 million in Fiscal 2016,
primarily due to an increase of HK$19.1 million in employee benefit
expenses of research and development personnel as a result of the
Group's strategic focus on innovation, research and development.

Listing expenses
Listing expenses for Fiscal 2016 represented expenses incurred for
the listing and were non-recurring in nature.

Gains on derivative financial instruments, net
Gains on derivative financial instruments consist of fair value gains
less settlement losses on derivative financial instruments.

Finance income
Finance income represents interest income on bank deposits.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interest expense on borrowings and
interest expense on amount due to a related party, net of interest
expenses capitalised. For Fiscal 2015 and Fiscal 2016, the Group's
finance costs represented 1.2% and 0.9% of its total revenue
respectively.

Finance costs decreased by 14.6% from HK$52.1 million in Fiscal
2015 to HK$44.5 million in Fiscal 2016, primarily due to repayment
of term loans and lower effective interest rate of the borrowings. As
at 31 March 2016, the Group's borrowings bore floating rates and
the effective interest rate of the outstanding bank borrowings was
2.5% per annum (31 March 2015: 2.8% per annum).

Income tax expense

Income tax expense represents the Group's total current and
deferred tax expenses under the relevant Hong Kong, PRC and
Vietnam income tax rules and regulations.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(Fiscal 2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for Fiscal
2016. One of the Hong Kong subsidiaries was subject to Hong
Kong profits tax at a rate of 8.25% in respect of its profits derived
from the contract processing arrangement during Fiscal 2015. The
contract processing arrangement ceased in Fiscal 2015 which
resulted in its loss of the preferential profits tax rate of 8.25% and
an increase in the profits tax rate from 8.25% to 16.5% thereafter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group is 25%
(Fiscal 2015: 25%) for Fiscal 2016.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietham were subject
to corporate income tax at a rate of 22% (Fiscal 2015: 22%). In
accordance with the applicable tax regulations, the subsidiaries are
subject to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen consecutive years,
commencing from the first year of making revenue. In addition, the
subsidiaries are entitled to full exemption from corporate income
tax for the first four years from the earlier of (i) the year when
profit is generated for the first time or (ii) the fourth year of making
revenue; and a 50% reduction in corporate income tax for the next
nine years. The Vietnam subsidiaries of the Group do not have any
taxable profit for Fiscal 2016 (Fiscal 2015: Nil).

The Group's income tax expense increased from HK$82.4 million
in Fiscal 2015 to HK$121.6 million in Fiscal 2016, as a result of an
increase in taxable income. The Group's effective tax rate increased
from 19.6% in Fiscal 2015 to 21.6% in Fiscal 2016, mainly due to
cessation of the contract processing arrangement of one of the
Hong Kong subsidiaries and non-deductibility of listing expenses
from the taxable profits of the Group.

Net profit and adjusted net profit

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, the Group’s
profit for the year increased by 30.9% from HK$337.8million in
Fiscal 2015 to HK$442.1 million in Fiscal 2016. The net profit margin
increased from 8.1% in Fiscal 2015 to 8.7% in Fiscal 2016.

The Group's adjusted net profit for the year increased by 39.3%
from HK$341.3 million in Fiscal 2015 to HK$475.5 million in Fiscal
2016. The adjusted net profit margin increased from 8.1% in Fiscal
2015 t0 9.4% in Fiscal 2016.

Liquidity, financial resources and bank borrowings
The Group maintains a strong and healthy financial position. As
at 31 March 2016, net working capital (calculated as current
assets less current liabilities) was HK$749.2 million, representing
an increase of HK$384.4 million, or 105.4%, as compared with
HK$364.8 million as at 31 March 2015. The current ratio (calculated
as current assets over current liabilities) increased from 1.3 times as
at 31 March 2015 to 1.5 times as at 31 March 2016.

Net proceeds from the Group's initial public offering (the “Global
Offering”) (including the full exercise of the over-allotment option
completed on 14 October 2015) amounted to an aggregate of
approximately HK$1,754.4 million. As at 31 March 2016, the
Group's net debt (represented by bank borrowings less the cash
and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits) was HK$170.4
million (31 March 2015: HK$973.1 million). Gearing ratio as at
31 March 2016 was 6.4% (31 March 2015: 86.0%), which was
calculated as net debt divided by total equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In Fiscal 2016, net cash generated from operating activities
amounted to HK$287.3 million. Extra cash used for increase in
working capital this year was mainly due to the initial stage of
Vietnam expansion and the Group's strategy of shortening payment
day to suppliers for securing stable and efficient raw materials
supply to meet the growing customer demand.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to HK$1,214.8
million in Fiscal 2016, as compared to HK$584.9 million in Fiscal
2015. Cash used in purchase of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights, and intangible assets amounted
to HK$930.2 million in Fiscal 2016 was mainly attributable to the
establishment of the Group's Vietnam facilities to cope with its
overall business expansion.

During Fiscal 2016, net cash generated from financing activities
amounted to HK$1,622.7 million, as compared to net cash used
in financing activities amounted to HK$40.9 million in Fiscal 2015.
The cash inflow from financing activities for Fiscal 2016 was mainly
attributable to the gross proceeds from the Global Offering of
HK$1,899.8 million.

Working capital management

Inventory turnover days FEREHE
Receivables turnover days MR IA [E 8 B &
Payables turnover days JEAS FRIA E 4 B 8L

The decrease in inventory turnover days from 64 days for Fiscal
2015 to 61 days for Fiscal 2016 was primarily due to the improved
inventory control management of the Group.

The decrease in receivables turnover days from 39 days for Fiscal
2015 to 36 days for Fiscal 2016 was primarily attributable to
improvement of management of trade receivables.

Payables turnover days decreased from 38 days for Fiscal 2015
to 29 days for Fiscal 2016. It was primarily due to the Group's
improved procurement management, and its strategy of shortening
payment day to suppliers for securing stable and efficient raw
materials supply to meet the growing customer demand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

Capital expenditures

For Fiscal 2016, total addition to property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights, and intangible assets amounted
to HK$1,131.1 million (Fiscal 2015: HK$332.8 million), and was
mainly attributable to the establishment of the Group's Vietnam
facilities amounted to HK$968.1 million to cope with its overall
business expansion.

Pledged assets

As at 31 March 2015, the Group pledged (i) debt securities of
HK$4.9 million; (i) investment funds of HK$3.9 million; and (iii)
insurance policy investments of HK$44.4 million to secured bank
borrowings.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have assets pledged for
bank borrowing.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC. Most of
operating expenses are denominated in Renminbi. Over 98% of
the Group's sales in Fiscal 2016 are denominated and settled in
U.S. dollars or HK dollars. HK dollars are pegged to U.S. dollars,
and thus the foreign exchange exposure in respect of HK dollars is
considered minimal.

The Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to
mitigate its exposures of Renminbi against U.S. dollars. As of 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2016, the notional principal amount of
the foreign exchange forward contracts in respect of the Renminbi
against the U.S. dollar was US$34.5 million, and US$4.5 million
respectively. Management will continue to monitor foreign currency
exchange exposure and will take prudent measures to minimize the
currency translation risk.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Material acquisitions and future plans for major
investment

Save for the investment in the construction of the production
facilities in Vietnam, during Fiscal 2016, the Group did not conduct
any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. In addition,
save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections headed
“Business” and “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 24 September 2015 (“the
Prospectus”), the Group has no specific plan for major investment
or acquisition for major capital assets or other businesses as at
31 March 2016. However, the Group will continue to identify new
opportunities for business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Use of proceeds

As stated in the Prospectus, the Group planned to use the
proceeds from the Global Offering mainly for increasing production
capacity, repaying borrowings, and for working capital and general
corporate purposes. The total net proceeds from the IPO amounted
to HK$1,754.4 million. For the period from the Listing Date to
31 March 2016, the Group's total cost of increasing production
capacity, repaying borrowings, and for general working capital
purposes, by using the proceeds from the Global Offering,
amounted to HK$1,145.7 million. Unutilised net proceeds as at 31
March 2016 were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2016, the Group employed a total of 26,677 full-
time staff (31 March 2015: 19,539). The increase in the number
of employees was mainly due to the increase in the scale of the
Group's business.

The Group believes its success depends heavily upon its
employees’ provision of consistent, quality and reliable services. In
order to attract, retain and develop the knowledge, skill level and
quality of its employees, it places a strong emphasis on training
its employees. The Group provides on-site training periodically and
across operational functions, including introductory training for
new employees, technical training, professional and management
training, team-building and communications training. In addition, it
sponsored qualified employees to attend other off-site management
and technical training courses. The Group has a management
trainee program for which it recruits annually university graduates in
specific disciplines with high management potential.

The Group enters into individual employment contracts with its
employees to cover matters such as wages, employee benefits,
safety and sanitary conditions in the workplace, and grounds for
termination. It has designed an evaluation system to assess the
performance of its employees. This system forms the basis of
its determinations of whether an employee should receive salary
raises, bonuses or promotions. Most of the Group’s technical
personnel are trained and promoted internally, leading to greater
employee stability and loyalty.

Events after the Balance sheet date
The Group has no significant events after the reporting period and
up to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

INNOVATION AND R&D

During the year under review, the Group's R&D center had
approximately 1,000 colleagues. Through their efforts, the Group
owns 83 patents as at 31 March 2016.

Future Prospects And Strategies

As stated in the report dated September 2015 prepared by Frost
& Sullivan (Beijing) Inc., Shanghai Branch on global intimate wear
industry, total sales value of the global intimate wear industry
is projected to reach US$463.9 billion by 2019. While such a
projection is favorable for all industry players, the Group will seek to
fully capitalize on the uptrend by leveraging its IDM business model,
underpinned by its focus on Innovation, Speed, and Quality.

With the Group's successful listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, it will capitalize on the fresh injection of capital to invest
in relevant technologies, and in particular, dedicate still greater
energies towards R&D leading to the introduction of innovative
products and solutions desired by its brand partners. The Group
is committed to further consolidating its leading position as global
intimate wear IDM in order to achieve sustainable growth. Hence, it
will continue to devote substantial resources to cross-industry and
cross-product-line technology innovations and R&D activities for
launching break-through technologies and products, which in turn
will further strengthen its relationships with existing brand partners.
Apart from continuously expanding the Group's intimate wear
businesses and strengthening its market position in the intimate
wear industry, it will also further expand into the functional sports
products industries by launching more sports footwear, functional
seamless sportswear, and associated wearable sports products
so as to stimulate business growth and broaden its customer
base. The Group also plans to deploy a more robust information
technology platform and higher-efficiency production planning
systems to raise production efficiency as well as minimize inventory
levels.

In addition, Regina Miracle has been striving to expand its
production capacity by constructing additional production facilities in
Vietnam. While the first plant in Vietham has commenced operation
just prior to the end of Fiscal 2016, the construction work of the
second facility, also located in the VSIP in Hai Phong City, Vietnam,
has been completed in June this year, with the third and fourth
facilities in Vietnam starting construction within this year. The Group
expects to have three additional facilities in Vietnam in operation
by 2020, which will increase the Group's production capacity. The
management believes that the expansion plan will help the Group
capture growth opportunities in different segments of the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The three major business segments namely bras and intimate wear,
bra pads and other molded products, and functional sports products
will remain the primary focus of the Group in the foreseeable
future. With the sports bra segment set to enter a rapid growth
phase in the next two to three years, the Group will capitalize on
its innovative products and business ties with renowned partners
to achieve steady growth. The functional sports product segment
is also set for further growth as more production capacity will be
allocated to this business. The management believes that the
overall product portfolio will become more balanced in the coming
years, which in turn will result in the stable development of the
Group.

As the Group sets about strengthening its all-round capabilities,
including products, R&D capacity and production, it will leverage its
greatest asset, its colleagues, to achieve strides forward. Through
the experience of its management team and the diligence of every
colleague, still greater returns will be delivered to the Group's
shareholders.

Latest Update on Production Facilities

Milestone achieved in Vietnam expansion

The Group celebrated the opening of its first facility in Vietnam in
March 2016. Situated in the VSIP in Hai Phong City, Vietnam, its
operation represents a major milestone in the Group’s overseas
development.

Aside from the facility's ability to run smoothly since opening —
meeting all targets, the recruitment and training of colleagues have
also been fruitful. Such positive progresses have been achieved due
to continuous training and the assignment of some experienced
middle-management staff from the Shenzhen facility to Vietnam.
The Group is therefore optimistic about plans to further invest in
Vietnam, including the recruitment of management and technical
personnel.

The first Vietnam facility has a GFA of approximately 174,000
square meters, and as at 31 March 2016, it had more than 5,500
colleagues, plus approximately 190 colleagues from the Shenzhen
facility who will eventually be stationed in Vietnam for the long
term. The headcount has increased gradually since the start of the
new fiscal year and it is expected that a total of 247 production
lines will be in operation by August 2016, with total staff count
exceeding 9,000 by the end of FY2016/17. The Group’s first
Vietnam facility is expected to be fully operational by August 2017,
when the planned annual capacity will reach approximately 46
million units. The majority of production capacity will be allocated
for bras and sports bras, with the remaining capacity for sportswear
products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

The management has three more Vietnam production facilities
in the pipeline. Construction of the second facility, also located in
VSIP, was completed in June 2016 and is expected to commence
operation by the fourth quarter. The second Vietnam facility
will have a GFA of approximately 159,000 square meters, and
will mainly be involved in the production of bra pads and sports
footwear. On the other hand, the third and fourth Vietnam
production facilities will start construction within this year and are
expected to commence operation by the first and third quarter of
2018 respectively.

In view of the more competitive labor costs in Vietnam and the
positive developments expected following the ratification of TPP,
the Group aims to implement its strategic plan for strengthening its
presence in the country in a timely manner.

Existing facility in Shenzhen

The Group’s Shenzhen facility is equipped with 416 production lines
and approximately 2,600 molding machines. During the year, the
facility achieved utilization rates of 95%, 96% and 93% for bras and
intimate wear, bra pads and other molded products, and functional
sports products respectively. In the upcoming financial year, the
production ratio of bra pads may decrease modestly owing to
the opening of the new facility in Vietnam, while the rest of them
would remain almost the same.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Geographical Presence

Regina Miracle is committed to capturing greater shares of the
European and Asian markets through ongoing cooperation with
its existing business partners, as well as mirroring their regional
development strategies. At the same time, the Group will make full
use of its innovative products to generate greater sales.

Business Partners Development

To encourage business growth with each of its major business
partners, the Group will strive to develop ties that are well balanced
and which can support the favorable development, introduction and
production of products for its business partners. The management
will also be highly prudent in selecting new business partners to
establish long-term ties.

Awards

Having the trust from its partners, Regina Miracle maintains a long-
lasting and stable relationship with them leveraging its innovation
and research and development capability. During the year, the
Group was awarded with “Special Merit" Award by adidas AG,
one of the Group’s long-term brand partners, recognizing Regina
Miracle's continuous contribution in terms of innovation, social
responsibility and improvement in production efficiency for adidas’s
products. The contribution of our colleagues is undeniable in
winning the trust and appreciation of domestic and international
brand partners for the Group. In order to nurture the commitment in
providing the Group's brand partners quality goods and services by
our colleagues, the Group is dedicated in creating an atmosphere
of “work happily, live fruitfully”, which won us the “Harmonious
Labor Relationship Promotion” Award ([ Flz£45 8R4 |58)
co-awarded by China Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment (FREIANEIRE =) and Shenzhen Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment (RYISNZIRE D EWE). For
product quality, the Shenzhen facility of the Group was accredited
as a “"Demonstration Zones for Quality Safety of Exported Goods”
(BHRENEREEL 2 R#E) and was included in the first
session of certified assessment and acceptance unit for provincial
demonstration zones for quality safety of exported goods.

“Harmonious Labor
Relationship Promotion” Award

[ TN 55 SRR (R (s |82
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"Special Merit” Award
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

Corporate Social Responsibility

Regina Miracle fully appreciates the importance of protecting the
environment and has relevant measures in place that align with the
government'’s policies in this regard.

The Group, in its efforts to also improve air quality, has been
recognized as one of the “"Hong Kong — Guangdong Cleaner
Production Partners” by the Hong Kong and Guangdong
governments in 2015. This marks the fourth consecutive year that
Regina Miracle has earned such distinction.

Energy conservation is another important concern of the Group
as reflected by its investment of over HK$2 million in reducing
electricity consumption, including the use of LED lighting and
upgrade of machinery. Consequently, 1.1 million kWh of energy
has been cut or approximately 1% of the Group's annual electricity
consumption.

Still another aspect of corporate social responsibility that is of
significance to management is contributing to society. Apart from
subsidizing the construction of 13 primary schools and donating
books to the less fortunate in different parts of China, the Group
has also contributed to the cultivation of talents for the society
through school-enterprise collaboration, including the establishment
of the "Regina Miracle Scholarship” with the Xi'an Polytechnic
University and Zhongyuan University of Technology, Zhengzhou, as
well as development of the first subject that specializes in intimate
wear in cooperation with Xi‘an Polytechnic University.

In Hong Kong, Regina Miracle was a major sponsor of the “Run for
Survival 2016" charity run, organized by Ocean Park Conservation
Foundation Hong Kong. More than 50 colleagues participated in
the race to show their support for ecological conservation. The
Group also made a HK$1 million donation to The Community Chest
of Hong Kong's “Stock Code Balloting for Charity Scheme"” in
celebration of its listing on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Group also has a volunteer team comprising over 500
colleagues who are actively involved in numerous charitable events.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND

COMPANY SECRETARY
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (%) (also known as YY Hung (#t)5725)),
aged 53, is the founder of the Group and has been a Director of
the Company since its incorporation on September 21, 2010. He
is also the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall development strategies and business
plans and overseeing the operation of the Group. With over 16
years of experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry,
Mr. Hung has been the key driver of our business strategies and
achievements to date and continues to oversee the management
of our operations and business. Mr. Hung is also a director of each
of the BVI, PRC and Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Hung has been a member of Fujian Province Committee of the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference since 2013. He
is currently the executive vice president of Shenzhen Underwear
Association (RIITARAKITERE) since 2012, the president of
Shenzhen Guangmmg New District Charity Association (F3II[T ¢
TR ZEEE) since January 2015 and council member of South
China Athletic Association (FFZEEEE€). Mr. Hung received the
Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong 2007 from Federation of
Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Hung is the uncle of Ms. Sze Shui Ling, our senior management
and executive Director. Mr. Yiu Ka So, our senior management, is a
cousin of Mrs. Hung.

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (k5 88), aged 40, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. Mr. Yiu
joined the Group as a financial controller on 17 June 2002 and
was promoted to the Chief Financial Officer of the Group in 2005.
Mr. Yiu is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall financial
management, internal control, legal and compliance matters
of the Group. He also serves as a director in a number of the
Company'’s subsidiaries. Mr. Yiu has over 17 years of experience in
financial management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yiu worked
at PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong in the tax department
from August 1998 to June 2002 and held the position of senior
consultant from July 2000 to June 2002. Mr. Yiu graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a first class honors
degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy in November 1998. He is
a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Yiu is a cousin of Mr.
Yiu Ka So, our senior management.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND

COMPANY SECRETARY
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Mr. LIU Zhenqgiang (2IE:&), aged 41, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015 and has been
the chief research and development and design officer of Regina
Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“RMIA Shenzhen”)
since April 2008. He is primarily responsible for product design,
research and development management of the Group. He also
serves as a director in a number of the Company's subsidiaries. Mr.
Liu joined the Previous Bra Processing Facilities in February 1999
and held the positions as manager of the research and development
department from February 1999 to September 2003 and chief
research and development and design officer from September 2003
to April 2008. From August 1998 to February 1999, Mr. Liu served
as a supervisor of quality assurance department at Shun Cheong
Factory for shoulder pads manufacturing. He has over 17 years of
experience in intimate wear design and research and development
management and contributed in a number of utility model patents
and invention patents on intimate wear design. Mr. Liu graduated
from Wuxi College of Light Industry (#£$5%L T A £2) (later renamed
as Jiangnan University (T E X&) majoring in textile design in June
1998 and a degree of executive master of business administration
from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (I Z65) in
September 2013.

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (BR&¥), aged 39, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company and the Chief Operating Officer
of the Group on 22 June 2015 and 30 November 2015 respectively,
and has been the general manager of RMIA Shenzhen since April
2008. He is primarily responsible for production management of
the Group. He is also a director of both RMIA Shenzhen and Regina
Miracle (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“"RM Shenzhen”). Mr. Chen joined
the Previous Bra Processing Facilities in October 2000 and held
the following positions: production supervisor from October 2000
to June 2001, production manager from June 2001 to September
2003, senior production manager from September 2003 to June
2006 and general manager from June 2006 to April 2008. He
has over 15 years of experience in intimate wear manufacture
management. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor degree in shipbuilding
engineering from East China Shipbuilding Institute (25 fifif T3 £
F%) (later renamed as Jiangsu University of Science and Technology
(THERREHEAE)) in July 1999 and a degree of executive master of
business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (£, &%) in September 2013.

Ms. SZE Shui Ling (FE#¥%), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. She has been
the sales and marketing director of Regina Miracle International
Limited since 24 June 1999 and Regina Miracle International (Group)
Limited since 18 September 2006. She is responsible for the sales
and marketing affairs of the Group. Ms. Sze has over 17 years of
experience in the sales and marketing of intimate wear. She is
also a director of a number of our subsidiaries. Ms. Sze holds a
certificate in tourism management program in Camosun College in
Canada in December 1996. Ms. Sze is the niece of Mr. Hung.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. OR Ching Fai (#;5#&), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on September
11, 2015 and is the chairman of the audit committee. Dr. Or is
primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and guidance on
the business development of our Group.

Dr. Or received a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics
and psychology from the University of Hong Kong in July 1972
before joining The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited as a management trainee. Dr. Or worked in a variety of
positions in personnel, securities, retail and corporate banking
divisions. Dr. Or was appointed as general manager and group
general manager in 2000 and became an executive director in 2005.
Dr. Or was then appointed as vice-chairman and chief executive of
Hang Seng Bank Limited (fE4£ER17BBR /A R)), a banking company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 11), in 2005
and retired in May 2009.

Dr. Or holds the following positions in companies listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange (*ASX") and the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange:

Duration of

BYFHTES

MBS E - 665% © M2015F9R 1M BEZ
EARNARBMYIENTES F WEAEZRE
BEeFfE MELETEAERASENER
BRIEEREEE R REE -

WIELER1972F 7R B BB REREH R
BE4 (KESMNES)EN  HEBENMAR
B ESELIRITERARTERREE o f1
BETRAE - FH  TERDERITIIE
FETRBAL o FIETHR2000F B L £ AEBE
BEREEBKIE - WHR2006F HERITE
= o B LEEE N 2006 FEEEAEARTT
BRAB(HEBBR T EMRITA R (RHR
%0 1)) BIEERITEERH, - WH20094F5
AiRIK -

8+ BRI E H KX 5 FT (Australian
Securities Exchange)([ ASX ) & & B 22 FT
TR A RIEE T HIRRAL -

Stock code  Position

RRS Bt

Company and its Principal Business Tenure
ARREERER {28

Stock Exchange
BERB

Aquis Entertainment Limited, from August 7, 2015 ASX AQS Deputy chairman and non-
formerly known as Discovery Resources to present executive director
Limited, an entertainment company B20156F8A7HES BEERFENIES

Aquis Entertainment Limited * BifEDiscovery
Resources Limited * B—5 124N R

Television Broadcasts Limited

from December 2012

The Hong Kong Stock 571

Independent non-

(BREEER2AT), a television to present Exchange executive director
broadcast company B2012F12RE5 BBER BUFNTESR
ERERARAR A—RERERAT
Industrial and Commercial Bank of from May 2012 The Hong Kong Stock 1398 Independent non-
China Limited (B L& 8778 to present Exchange executive director
AR/ 7), abanking company H2012F5 2% BB BUFHTES

PETARTRNERRE A—RETLH

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited from November 2011 The Hong Kong Stock 1929 Independent non-

([AABHEEERRLF), to present Exchange executive director
ajewellery company B201ENAES BB BUFNTESR

FARBRESEER LR R—FKHELH
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Duration of
Tenure

Company and its Principal Business
ARRHEEEEK

Stock Exchange

Stock code  Position

34

BEXH M

igrkis] B

China Strategic Holdings Limited from November 2009 The Hong Kong Stock 235 Chairman, chief executive
(PR EEBRAT), aninvestment and to present Exchange officer and executive
metal trading company B2009F11 A% BB director

FREEERAT  A—RKERER I TR
tBEENA WIES

G-Resources Group Limited from July 2009 The Hong Kong Stock 1051 Vice-chairman and
(B & REEAR A E]), agoldand to present Exchange independent non-
silver mining company B2009F7 824 BB executive director

BEREREEERAR B—ReHE BEEREIENTES
FELR

Esprit Holdings Limited from March 1996 The Hong Kong Stock 330 Independent non-
(BRRIERAR AT, to present Exchange executive director
a fashion and living products company B1996F37 %45 BB since March 1996 and

BRRIERARAA] became chairman from
A RERETARAT June 2012

Dr. Or was also an independent non-executive director of Hutchison
Whampoa Limited (M2 EH B AR, a telecommunications,
retail, infrastructure and energy company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock code: 13) and Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited (BZFRAZEE R A T]), an aviation company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 293) from February 2000
to May 2009, respectively.

Dr. Or is a vice patron of the board of the Community Chest of
Hong Kong. He was also the chairman of the Hong Kong Association
of Banks in 2000 and 2003 and was vice chairman of the Hong
Kong Association of Banks in 2001, 2002, 2004 and 2005. He was
also the chairman of the Financial Services Advisory Committee and
a member of the Services Promotion Programme Committee of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He was a member of the
Risk Management Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, vice president and a council member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers, a member of the Aviation Development
Advisory Committee, the chairman of Executive and Campaign
Committee of the Community Chest of Hong Kong, the deputy
council chairman of the Council of City University of Hong Kong, a
council member of the University of Hong Kong, an adviser of the
Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong and a member of the Planning
Committee of the 5th East Asian Games.
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Dr. Or was awarded a Silver Bauhinia Star from the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and Honorary University Fellow
from the University of Hong Kong in 2009. He was conferred an
Honorary Doctor of Social Science by the City University of Hong
Kong in November 2014. Dr. Or is a Justice of the Peace.

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie (FgE k1), aged 60, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 11 September 2015 and is primarily responsible for providing
strategic advice and guidance on the business development of our
Group. She is also a member of the nomination committee, the
audit committee and the chairman of the remuneration committee
of the Company. Mrs. To has extensive experience in the garments
trading industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mrs. To was employed
by Mast Industries (Far East) Limited, the sourcing arm of LBrands,
as the president from January 2007 to May 2013 and the executive
vice president from September 1996 to December 2006. From April
1995 to August 1996, she served as a director of Li & Fung (Trading)
Ltd., a Hong Kong based global sourcing company. From January
1991 to February 1995, Mrs. To was the executive vice-president of
Bonaventure Textiles Limited, a garment manufacturing company.
From June 1979 to December 1990, Mrs. To held various positions
from executive trainee to assistant managing director of Swire
and MaclLaine Limited, the trading division of John Swire & Sons
Limited. Mrs. To obtained a bachelor degree of arts from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1979.

Ms. TAM Laiman (EEEX), aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is primarily responsible for providing strategic
advice and guidance on the business development of our Group.
She is also a member of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Ms.
Tam has extensive management experience in the consumer
products marketing, distribution and retailing industry. Ms. Tam
currently holds position either as a manager or an executive director
of the following six group companies in Swire Pacific Limited:
Rebecca Minkoff Holding Company LLC, a footwear and clothing
company based in the U.S.; SRM Holdings, Inc., a holding company
of brands investment; United Sheen Limited, a holding company of
brands investment; Columbia Sportswear Commercial (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. (et niEESREE (L)) AR AR, a sales and
distribution company of branded outdoor and sports clothing and
footwear; SCCH Limited, a holding company of brands investment
and Swire Brands Limited, a holding company of consumer brands
investment. She is primarily responsible for the companies’ overall
development and operation.

TIE TR 2009 FF A FF 57T IR & AR 3R 52
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FORMZE2006F 12 A L HMEEFEZ(ER
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From January 1990 to July 2013, Ms. Tam served the positions
as managing director, director and general manager of Swire
Resources Limited, a marketing, distribution and retail company
of branded clothing and footwear product, where she was
primarily responsible for the company’s overall development and
operation. From October 1987 to December 1989, Ms. Tam was
the general manager in charge of the overall operation of Reebok
Hong Kong Ltd., a sports brand company of clothing and footwear.
From December 1983 to May 1987, Ms. Tam worked at Plough
Consumer Products (Asia) Ltd., a consumer products marketing
and distribution company, as the regional marketing manager
responsible for the Southeast Asia market. From May 1978 to
November 1983, Ms. Tam worked at the group companies of
Fung Ping Fan Group, a diversified company involving in consumer
brands distribution and real estate businesses.

Ms. Tam obtained a bachelor degree in administration from
University of Ottawa in May 1976. Ms. Tam has been an executive
committee member of Benji's Centre (FEEE 5 E () and the vice
chairman of the supervisory board of Macao International Brand
Enterprise Commercial Association (RFIEE RIEDERES) since
2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUANG Guoxian (ZE &), aged 51, has been the general
manager of technology development of RMIA Shenzhen since April
2008. He is responsible for technology, research and development
and machinery improvement of the Group, and contributed in
several utility model patents and invention patents on intimate
wear design, including one-piece bra. Mr. Huang is also the vice
chairman of RMIA Shenzhen and a Director of RM Shenzhen. He
joined the Previous Bra Processing Facilities in February 1999 and
held the positions as manager of the research and development
department from February 1999 to March 2003 and chief
technology officer from March 2003 to April 2008. From June 1988
to February 1999, Mr. Huang worked as supervisor of the research
and development department at Shun Cheong Factory for shoulder
pads manufacturing. Mr. Huang has over 17 years of experience
in the intimate wear manufacturing industry. Mr. Huang obtained a
high school diploma from Fuging Jiangdou Huagiao Middle School
(BTG ) in July 1982,
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Mr. YIU Ka So (kfn#), aged 42, has been the general manager
of operation of the Group since he joined us on March 3, 2004. He
is primarily responsible for operations management of the Group.
Mr. Yiu is also the vice chairman of RMIA Shenzhen, a director
of RM Shenzhen, the legal representative and general director
of Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd and of Regina
Miracle International Hai Duong Co., Ltd and the general manager
of Regina Miracle International (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. Mr. Yiu has over
ten years of experience in enterprise and operations management.
Mr. Yiu served at United Photovoltaics Group Limited (formerly
known as Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited), a solar company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 686), as an
executive director from October 2010 to December 2013. Mr. Yiu
obtained a bachelor degree in engineering and a master degree of
science in civil engineering, both from the University of Hong Kong,
in December 1997 and November 2001, respectively. Mr. Yiu is a
cousin of Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony and Mrs. Hung.

Ms. LEUNG, Mai Ling Connie ($3%%), aged 50, has been the
general manager of business division of the Group since she joined
us on September 3, 2003. She is responsible for sales management
of the Group. Ms. Leung has over 23 years of experience in the
clothing industry, of which over 12 years in the intimate wear
manufacturing industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Leung worked at PLH Fashion
Group, a trading company, as a divisional manager primarily
responsible for merchandising and management from November
2002 to September 2003. From 1995 to 2002, Ms. Leung worked
at Mast Industries (Far East) Limited, a garments and accessories
trading company, as a merchandising manager and regional
merchandising manager, where she was primarily responsible for
the regional market management. From October 1993 to June
1995, she served as a sourcing manager in charge of material
sourcing, purchasing and development in Lion-Redcliffe &
Company Limited, an embroidery manufacturer. In addition, Ms.
Leung served as an assistant merchandiser overseeing sample
development, production and shipment in Texunion Garment Co.,
Ltd., a garment manufacturer, from July 1985 to June 1986.
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Ms. Leung obtained a diploma in clothing in Hong Kong Vocational
Training Council in July 1985, a national diploma in clothing in Hong
Kong Business and Technical Education Council in March 1986, a
diploma in clothing design and production management from the
Clothing and Footwear Institute in 1993. Ms. Leung completed the
modular post-graduate diplomas in textile and clothing and clothing
studies in October 1995 and November 1996, respectively, and
obtained a master of arts degree in clothing studies from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in December 1999.

Mr. LIANG Changming (£ 85), aged 36, has been the sample
development deputy general manager of shoe division of RMIA
Shenzhen since February 2012. He is responsible for research
and development of shoe products of the Group. He was also
the senior manager of the research and development department
of RMIA Shenzhen from April 2008 to February 2012. Mr. Liang
joined the Previous Bra Processing Facilities in June 2003 and
held the positions in the research and development department as
supervisor from June 2003 to May 2006 and manager from May
2006 to April 2008. Mr. Liang has over 13 years of experience in
intimate wear manufacturing industry, specializing in bra pads, bras
and sports bras. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor degree in textile
examination and commerce from Donghua University (R AZE) in
July 2003.

Mr. HO Soon Hin ({A])[Ef&), aged 53, has been the deputy general
manager of production management of the Group since he joined us
on October 16, 2002 and is responsible for production management
and quality control of the Group. Mr. Ho has over 14 years of
experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry.

Mr. ZHANG Wenbo (&3 18), aged 36, has been the sample
development deputy general manager of the intimate wear division
of RMIA Shenzhen since February 2012. He is responsible for the
research and development of bra products of the Group. Mr. Zhang
was also the senior manager of the research and development
department of RMIA Shenzhen from April 2008 to February
2012. Mr. Zhang joined the Previous Bra Processing Facilities
in September 2002 and held the positions in the research and
development department as supervisor from September 2002 to
May 2004 and manager from May 2004 to April 2008. Mr. Zhang
has over 13 years of experience in the research and development
of intimate wear products. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor degree in
thermal engineering from Jiamusi University (fEARHTAZR) in June
2002.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAW Kwan Chuen (Z#9%), aged 37, joined the Group on
December 15, 2011 as our group financial controller and was
appointed as our company secretary on June 22, 2015. He is
primarily responsible for financial reporting, corporate finance
and company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Law has
approximately 15 years of experience in auditing, financial reporting
and corporate finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Law worked
at PricewaterhouseCoopers from October 2004 to December 2011
with the last position as manager. From July 2001 to October 2004,
he worked at Moore Stephens as an auditor.

Mr. Law obtained a bachelor degree of business administration
majoring in professional accountancy from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong (A& X AKZ) in November 2001. He has been an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom since February 2004 and
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since September
2004. Mr. Law has also been a Chartered Financial Analyst (“CFA")
charter holder of the CFA Institute since September 2006, a fellow
member of ACCA since July 2009 and a fellow member of HKICPA
since September 2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 69 of
this annual report.

The Board has recommended to pay to the shareholders of the
Company a final dividend of HK5.6 cents per share for the year
ended 31 March 2016. Subject to the approval of the proposed final
dividend by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting to be held on Wednesday, 31 August 2016, the final
dividend is expected to be paid on or about Tuesday, 20 September
2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the purpose of determining the shareholder’s eligibility to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 29 August
2016 to Wednesday, 31 August 2016, both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the annual general meeting,
shareholders should ensure that all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 26 August
2016. The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Wednesday, 31 August 2016.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO FINAL DIVIDEND

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement for the
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 6 September 2016 to Thursday, 8 September
2016, both days inclusive. To qualify for the final dividend,
shareholders should ensure that all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5
September 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 12 and pages 13 to 28 of
this annual report. Discussions on the Group’s relationships with
its key stakeholders are also set out in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 6 to 12 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the Group’s Financial Information Summary
on page 144 of this annual report. The Group has no significant
events after the end of the financial year ended 31 March 2016 and
up to the date of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last four years ended 31 March 2016 are set
on page 144 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$1,777.1
million (2015: HK$514.1 million).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2016 amounted to HK$1.3 million (2015: HK$1.4 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities since the
Listing Date and up to 31 March 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of the Company approved and adopted a share
option scheme on 11 September 2015 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme took effect on the Listing Date,
and no option has been granted up to the date of this report.
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Who may participate

Subject to the terms of Share Option Scheme, the Board
(including any committee or delegate of the Board appointed
by the Board to perform any of its functions pursuant to
the rules of the Share Option Scheme) may, at its absolute
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such
number of Shares as the Board may determine to an
employee (whether full time or part-time) or a director of a
member of the Group (the "Eligible Person”).

Maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options maybe granted

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any options granted under any other share option
scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the Listing Date unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in the
general meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing Rules,
the maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
Eligible Person under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not at the time of grant exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of options under the Share Option Scheme shall
be open for acceptance for such period (not exceeding 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of offer) as the Board
may determine and notify to the Eligible Persons concerned
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after
the expiry of the duration of the Share Option Scheme. An
offer of options not accepted within this period shall lapse. An
amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant of
an option and such payment shall not be refundable and shall
not be deemed to be a part payment of the exercise price.
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(e) Exercise Price

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not
be less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer of the
option; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer
of the option; and (i) the nominal value of the Shares.

(f) Time for Exercise of options
An option may be exercised at any time during the period
which is notified by the Board at the offer date when making
an offer to an Eligible Person but such period not to exceed
the period of 10 years from the offer date of such option.

(g) Duration of Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date, after
which period no further options will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of any options granted prior thereto which are at
that time or become thereafter capable of exercise under the
rules of the Share Option Scheme, or otherwise to the extent
as may be required in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, sales to the Group's five
largest customers accounted for approximately 68.4% of the
Group’s total sales for the year (of which sales to the Group's
largest customer accounted for approximately 28.4%). Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
47 1% of the Group's total purchases for the year (of which
purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 16.3%).

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates or any
shareholder which to the best knowledge of the Directors, who
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital, had any
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers
during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes in
accordance with relevant rules and regulations in PRC and Hong
Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LIU Zhengiang

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. SZE Shui Ling

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. OR Ching Fai

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie

Ms. TAM Laiman

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mr Yiu Kar Chun Antony
and Mr Liu Zhengiang will retire as Directors in accordance with
Article 84 of the Articles of Association of the Company and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S AND
COMPANY SECRETARY’S PROFILE

Profile details of the Directors of the Company, the senior
management and company secretary of the Group are set out on
pages 29 to 37 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 11 September 2015 and the Company has
issued letters of appointment to each of the independent non-
executive Directors. The principal particulars of these service
contracts and letters of appointment are (a) for a term of 3 years
commencing from 11 September 2015 and (b) are subject to
termination in accordance with their respective terms. The term
of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with our articles of association of the
Company and the applicable Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements, no Director and/or any of
his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at anytime during
the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited (“Le Ying", together with
its subsidiaries collectively, the “Le Ying Group”) is a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), a
controlling shareholder and an executive Director of the Company,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules.

The Company entered into an agreement with Le Ying on 11
September 2015 to regulate the sales of intimate wear products of
the Company to Le Ying Group (the “Le Ying Sales Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Le Ying Sales Agreement, price of the sales of
intimate wear products by the Company to Le Ying Group shall
be determined on an arm’s length basis with reference to (1) the
average selling price of the products of comparable nature and
scale and accepted by an independent third party in the twelve-
month period prior to the relevant transaction, (2) where there is
no such average selling price available, any most recent available
sale price of products of comparable nature and scale offered by
the Group and accepted by an independent third party, the latest
available market data, and (3) the prevailing market price for the
sale of products of comparable nature and scale, which should
be in any event no less favorable to the Group than is available to
independent third parties.
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The Le Ying Sales Agreement became effective on 8 October 2015
and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a period of three years or
(i) the date on which Le Ying ceases to be the connected person
of the Company, whichever comes earlier. The parties to Le Ying
Sales Agreement may negotiate to extend the agreement for a
further term of three years within two months before the expiry
of the three-year term of the agreement unless the agreement is
terminated due to Le Ying ceasing to be the connected person of
the Company.

During the year, the annual cap for revenue from sales to Le Ying
for Fiscal 2016 as permitted by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange was
HK$50.0 million, the actual transaction amount for Fiscal 2016 with
Le Ying was HK$14.0 million and the annual cap has been kept.

The transactions contemplated under the Le Ying Sales Agreement
also constitute related party transaction of the Company under
IFRS, details of which are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected
Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

a. inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
b. on normal commercial terms or better; and

c. according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), the Company’s auditor was engaged to
perform certain procedures in respect of the continuing connected
transactions set out above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in its normal course of business are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. Those related party transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which
are set out in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 44 to 45, have
compiled with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group's businesses, which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the year was the Company, or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") or to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate, nor did the Company
enter into any equity-linked agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BERBSTHRAERR®S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN HEROREEENESRER
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND =

DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2016, the Directors and the chief executives of M2016F3A31H » ARBIEERTEEITH
the Company had the following interests and short positions in the ABRARB N EREEE (& RES M
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its EIEBEXVER) ARG B A LSS E
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), KRN A RRAATHEENZELMA :
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company &*E%FJ:F‘E%EE‘JMT%10ﬁﬁﬁtmﬁfﬁ/\§$
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to EITHEFRXGMRETAAEASITAE AR
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to RBEBBRATHRG « BRI R E#EE EF'

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed MR MAR  FFIBET ¢
Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as
follows:

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the Company

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares (%)

HAQT

8y RESLAE D

EEnE EatE BB (A& EE)

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as Beneficial owner; Interest in 885,000,000 72.29%
YY Hung) controlled corporation (long position)
HEREE (X B HERFZR) e EmBAA  ZiEHEEER (Note)
(4FE)
(By&E)

Note: Amongst these 885,000,000 shares, 708,000,000 shares are beneficially MisE :  7£ 1k 885,000,000 A% i% 17 & » 708,000,000
owned by Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited which is wholly %A% 17 FARegent Marvel Investment Holdings
owned by Mr. Hung. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as L|m|ted( Bt EE2EHE)EXEE - BIE
YY Hung) is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent Marvel BEH REREIEE) - R (X 2R ) e
Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) is ﬁ /& 1 Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
also the beneficial owner of 177,000,000 shares. Limited FT#5 MR (0 FR A 2« HOBERE (X

EHENFZE ) S A IR /177,000,000 A% 19 80 B 2
BAEA -
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EEEHE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short position of substantial
shareholders (other than the Directors or the chief executives of
the Company) in the Shares or the underlying Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRNESERAR

20163 A31H » TEWME(ARFIESRK
BRTBABRIN BEBIREFES KIS E0)
EIIEBNANR AT FENE LM
BAD SR BRR 1D MR ROAX B IR T

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the Company

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares (%)
RN
REMABE D
R R HatE RGEE (BZtE)
Regent Marvel Investment Beneficial owner 708,000,000 57.83%
Holdings Limited EREEAN (long position)
(Note 1)
(478)
(M¥&E1)
Ms. Choy King Ngor Interest of spouse 885,000,000 72.2%
BB L [y (long position)
(Note 2)
(4F7E)
(M$5E2)
Notes: MEE
1. Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited is beneficially and wholly 1. Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited3

owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited.

2. Ms. Choy King Ngor is the wife of Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested
by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Directors were
not aware that there is any other person or corporation who, as at
the date of this annual report, had an interest or short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company, which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

HHE(RBRANE)EEBEREEHES - R
BESRBEE - REE(XERNE) %%
# 18 /& 7 Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
Limited T A MR P A -

2. EREETAMNE(RAHLHFE) KENE
T - RIBEH LS RO EXVE - GRIRAR
SO (R & ) % A M 28 M0 B o
B -

B EXFTEEEI - 201638310 &
B RAEB E A EfA L RA RIRANFETR
HHER AR GG KRR (D R A IR IR
H M HAE KB EXVELE2 X35 BRI AR
RAREBEAESSIAE « IR IEFH L
EIEPIFE336 KM EARRATENZ LM
FracsmiEzason g o

48 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiRBE(ER)ERA A



SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, from the Listing Date
up to the date of this report, there has been sufficient public float of
more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on pages
50 to 60 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution
for re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the independent
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 June 2016

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEEREE

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
(the “Corporate Governance Report”) in the Group’s annual
report for the period from the Listing Date up to 31 March 2016 (the
“Reporting Period").

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

As the Company's shares were not yet listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange until 8 October 2015, the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“Listing Rule"”) was not applicable to
the Company for the period before the Listing Date. The Board and
the management of the Group are committed to the maintenance
of good corporate governance practices and procedures. The
Company believes that good corporate governance provides a
framework that is essential for effective management, a healthy
corporate culture, successful business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value. The corporate governance principles of the
Company emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that save as disclosed below, the
Company has complied with all code provisions and, where
applicable, the recommended best practices of the CG Code since
the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2016.

According to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Hung
Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) as both the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
in the same individual would enable the Company to achieve
higher responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when
formulating business strategies and executing business plans.
The Board believes that the balance of power and authority is
sufficiently maintained by the operation of the senior management
and the Board, which comprises experienced and high-calibre
individuals. The Board currently comprises five executive Directors
(including Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)) and three
independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition. The Board will
nevertheless review the structure and composition of the Board
from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.

EXeMARAEEFHRIEZ A LW AR
ZE201653 A3 HIFERE ([ |MEH DAL
FeEamE ([REERE|E]) -

W RERNARE

AR AR TP 72015510 A8 H Bl i Kk
REBHZAT LT  MEBHATESF LT
BT LR 8 D) M 4FTE M E B4 T
AR ¥EEARE([RESAETA DR ET
AHRTHIMT TEARARAR - EFEERA
SEEREBNGRBRITNCEESERK
B o AARMERE @ RIFEEEARERE
B BEMENE - RINEBERRIEAR
R EERE—ET A skBRAOIESR - XARA]
WEEBARMZEESEENERS - @2
FAEEIE AR 2 BB R ASHERME
Mo

TEERER
EECCBEMARRNGET TR - L
MBTXEEEIN  ARERE EmARE
Z£20165F3A31AEETAA TRIE & (1
HA)CEESTANEERETR

RIEFRIGXA2.1  ERREREAITENA
BEEMED A TEHF—ARE - A2
AlE REHE (R B R ERARRA]
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BRI R R MATERG IR EGRE - 8
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RIFARBNRRFEEELER
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listing Issuers (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Upon specific enquiries
being made with all Directors, each of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code since the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2016.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, led by the chairman, Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), determines and monitors the overall strategy
and policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates the
performance of the Group, and supervises the management of the
Company.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among
other things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of the
corporate and financial policies, review and assessment of the
Company'’s financial reporting, internal control and risk management
systems and the oversight of the management of the Group's
business and affairs. In addition, the Board has also established
four Board committees, namely the audit committee, the
nomination committee, the remuneration committee and executive
committee, and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities set out in their respective terms of reference.

Composition

The Board currently has eight Directors comprising five executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors (the
“"INEDs"). The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Liu Zhengiang

Mr. Chen Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. Sze Shui Ling

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Or Ching Fai

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie

Ms. Tam Laiman

SEEREE
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The members of the Board represent a wide background and rich
industry experience with appropriate professional qualifications.
Please refer to the section headed "Profile of Directors, Senior
Management and Company Secretary” of this annual report for
the profiles of the Directors. Save as disclosed in the section
headed “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary”, the Directors have no other financial, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are served by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and have not been segregated as required under code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board is of the view that
such arrangement provided the Group with strong and consistent
leadership to the Company and allowed for more effective and
efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution of
long term business strategies.

Independence of INEDs

During the Reporting Period, the Board had three INEDs,
representing more than one-third of the Board, and at least one of
them has the appropriate professional qualification of accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10 of
the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the three INEDs in respect of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all the INEDs are independent parties in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and free of
any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of
their independence judgements.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing on 11 September 2015. Each of the INEDs has signed
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from 11 September 2015.
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In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election. Further, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of the Members after his appointment and
shall be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony
and Mr. Liu Zhengiang will retire as Directors in accordance with
Articles 84 of the Articles of Association and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election. Their biographical details will be
set out in the circular to be dispatched to the Shareholders with the
notice of annual general meeting.

Meetings

The Board meets on a regular basis, and on an ad hoc basis, as
required by the business needs. During the Reporting Period,
the Board convened two meetings to approve the interim results
announcement and financial reports, and to discuss the overall
strategy and monitor financial and operation performance of the
Company.

Attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings during
the Reporting Period is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

HITEE

Executive Director
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)

Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony oS S

Mr. Liu Zhengiang BB E

Mr. Chen Zhiping PREFELE

Ms. Sze Shui Ling iRt
Independent non-executive Director BUFHITEE
Dr. Or Ching Fai fEEE
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (RN R
Ms. Tam Laiman EEX T

HRE (X BHFZE) 4

SEEREE

REARRAGERZAR(AKEREZM@[ )
FoAF  EBERRBFREL =n2z—
REES(AMABLIF = =MEE BI&
B ERIPR=0 2 —HAB) ARERE -
HEREEARKRREFAE LRIE=F
WERE R REEZASERERE
o ttih EEEFERTNARERZE
RANEER  AEBREEEZTRMOEREBRR
RERBLL  WERZKE LEREE Mo
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1k EREABIRERET

RARR A RITHBRRBEFRE L - HF
FE(RAMIEZE) 54 - R AL RBIER
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BEINERRRBEFAGBEFETHER

L
EETEHMREBABIRETERE -1
BEHAN  EESERMASHAMETH
KERERMBERE - W wmEBERENE
RARANPH R EERR -

TR SEHNEENRERNLFEES

22 I .
gREN

Number of

meetings attended Attendance rate
HEERRE =
2/2 100

2/2 100

2/2 100

2/2 100

2/2 100

2/2 100

2/2 100

2/2 100
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SEEREE

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report, the
Company has not held any general meeting yet, so that the
attendance record of the Directors regarding general meetings is
not available.

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) stipulating the composition of the Board,
reviewing the policies and measures on the Group's corporate
governance. Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the
Board's composition, the nomination committee of the Company is
satisfied that the requirement set out in the Board Diversity Policy
has been met.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development so as to equip themselves with the
latest developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal
and regulatory requirements, industry knowledge and managerial
skills in relation to the operation of the Group’s business. Upon
appointment to the Board, the Directors receive a package
of orientation materials on the Group and are provided with a
comprehensive induction to the Group's businesses by senior
executives. For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company
arranged for the Directors a seminar on the Listing Rules regarding
the continuing obligations and duties of a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and its directors, which was attended
by all Directors.

All Directors have provided to the Company with their training
records and such records have been maintained by the Company
for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.

Directors’ liability insurance and indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance to indemnify its Directors against liabilities arising
out of legal action on corporate activities. During the Reporting
Period, no claim had been made against the Directors of the
Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and executive committee, each of which has the defined written
terms of reference that will be reviewed and updated, where
necessary. Copies of minutes of all meetings are kept by the
company secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director. Each committee is required
to report to the Board on its decision and recommendations, where
appropriate.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Or
Ching Fai, Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman.
The chairman of the audit committee is Dr. Or Ching Fai who has
appropriate professional qualifications.

The audit committee is established to, without limitation, assist the
Board in providing an independent review and supervision of the
Group's financial and accounting policies, to review the financial
controls, risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, to oversee the audit process, and to perform other
duties and responsibilities as delegated by the Board.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
audit committee members met three times with the Group's senior
management and the external auditors to discuss and review,
among other things, the following matters:

e the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2015 and the annual results for the year ended 31 March
2016 to ensure full, complete and accurate disclosure in the
aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the accounting
standards and other legal requirement for presenting the same
to the Board for approval,

e the terms and remuneration for the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditors to perform the
agreed-upon procedures on the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2015 and the audit of annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2016;

e the independence of the external auditors especially for those
non-audit services; and

e the overall effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems.

Attendance of each individual member at the Committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

Dr. Or Ching Fai EEE L
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (R SR
Ms. Tam Laiman BEN It
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee comprises three members, namely
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (the chairman of the committee),
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) and Ms. Tam Laiman.

The primary responsibilities of the remuneration committee include
(but not limited to) making recommendations and proposals to
the Board in respect of remuneration policies and structure for
Directors and senior management'’s remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration committee held one
meeting, in which it reviewed the existing remuneration policies
by reference with the market research and gave recommendation
of the remuneration packages and performance-based bonus
for executive Directors and senior management to the Board for
approval.

Attendance of each individual member at the Committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
Ms. Tam Laiman
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the code
provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of other
members of the senior management by bands for the year ended
31 March 2016 is set out below:

Remuneration to the senior management

ERBHUFE IR GRS B REMN LSS
BEoh - RIS EEASFRIFRANEB.A5 - &
ZF2016F3ANBIEFEHMEREERER
BREREDOFEHBES T -

Number of
senior management

by bands EREEEBRERE DM SREEEAE

HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 751,000,001 7T £ % 1,500,0007T 1

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 7T £ 748 #2,000,0007T 4

HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 7T £ # 2,500,000 1
Nomination Committee REEEE

The nomination committee comprises three members, namely, Mr.
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue
Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman. Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) is the chairman of the nomination committee.
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(R&SEHZ) %4 - BE XML+ REBX
Lot o S (L AHITE) R BIREE R
LEE
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The primary responsibilities of the nomination committee include
(but not limited to) reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on structure, size composition and diversity of the Board,
to oversee the identification and assessment of potential board
candidates, to provide oversight and direction in respect of the
succession planning for Directors and to determine the composition
of Board committees.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
nomination committee held two meetings which dealt with the

following matters:

e recommendation to the Board for appointment of Mr. Chen
Zhiping as Chief Operating Officer of the Group;

° review of the Board composition and structure;
e review of independence of INEDs; and

e review of re-appointment of retiring Directors.

Attendance of each individual member at the Committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

SEEREE

REZBENIZREBR(ETREN)BE
EEeWRE  ARRERZTEL LR
EEeRIEBER  UREEVERFZ

AREBENEFTEMREA  REEBERES
Eﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ’]ﬁh&ﬁ%ﬂ&%mi%?ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬂ
B o

RBEHAREEAREAY - REEZEE
BITMASHENRIENTEE

s HEERTFEERAKENERZE
EREFEERMHER

o EHMEFEWHEMKERE

o MEBUIFMITEFNEILME K

s ERRAEFEMEFE-

TREVISERKEHFZEE RN

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
Name of Director HESRXE HfE =
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) St ( X & utigzs ) e 4 2/2 100
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (RN R 2/2 100
Ms. Tam Laiman S 2/2 100
Executive Committee HITEES

The Board has set up the executive committee on 30 November
2015. The executive committee comprises all executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Board shall be the
chairman of the Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the executive committee include,
but not limited to, advising and assisting the Board in formulating
policies, monitoring the performance of management in carrying
out and implementing the policies laid down by the Board for the
Group, and handling and dealing with the bank-related transactions
and matters.

EFELN2015F11A0HKIHITEZES -
WITZEERANRZEHNITESRMEK - M
EECIRFAUABZZECTNER -

HITZBENERERERE(ETRN)HH
FIRRAEFERHEERLATIHE  BF
BEEERATRETHESERAKEREE
MIBRZ RIL - PARBEIE R IR SRTTAE AR
HREH
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company engages PricewaterhouseCoopers as external
auditor. PricewaterhouseCoopers is responsible for auditing and
forming an independent opinion on the Group's annual consolidated
financial statements.

The audit committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’'s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year a planning report from the external
auditor confirming its independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with representatives of the external auditor to consider
the scope of its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of non-
audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The audit committee also
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the external auditor.

Auditor’'s Remuneration
The remuneration paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external
auditor of the Company in respect of the audit and non-audit
services related to Global Offering of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$8.6 million.

During the year ended 31 March 20186, the total fees paid/payable
in respect of services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers are set
out below:

Services rendered

FriR LR AR

EZR
FEBEZIRT

Audit services
Non-audit services

SRR BEM

AR B RIEE LB R ERTRING
ZEEN - BEBKE G ARAEX
AEBENFEFEEMBERRLBM U IRMBT
BR -

ERZBEENRERINSZ BB LI
REEN  UREZBENBRLE - R8BS
FERE RIS EREN T H R E 1 8
FEEMRRE®RE - WEIMNERBENHRER
BITEH  UEBHEEBRE - URKHE
Frie e sEEZ RS (NG ) B LB E
1o BEREZBETHMIMNERBMN TR EER
BEEAEFGRIER -

o BB A

MARR 2B EABHOEZ L IFEZR
A P AR RISNIE R BN B SR B AT
EBHE NN RBES6BHET °

HZE2016F3A31HIEFE » s LEKE
M ESATRENREEN, EBHERR
HEHIT

Fees paid/payable
B ENEA

HK$'000
BT T

2,500
1,137

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the consolidated
financial statements of the annual and interim reports, other price
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and to report to regulators as well as to
disclose information required pursuant to statutory requirements.
When the Directors become aware of material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
such uncertainties would be clearly and prominently set out and
discussed in detail in this Corporate Governance Report.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities and opinion of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2016 is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 61
and 62 of this annual report.

BEREF%

EEWER  REFEEEFRETHRED
FAMBHRE  HURESRASEEREL
AR AIFT AR E M B A TS IR R R AR (RS
B R SRR, - R BB B E R R
BRIBEAEERMRENER - HEEME
HREBRBEY EARRFERL L INEMS
HERNEENEANTARER - AIAEARD
EERMET B MBEHAA RN R
ZETHREAREE ©

NABBIYAZBE AR EPREE R EH A
NRHE2016F3A31B IEFEMLEAME
WEREROER SN AFHREFECT K628
RB M AZEREN R -
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal controls of the Company are designed to help the
Company in protecting its assets and information. The presence
of internal controls empowers the Company to implement
best business practices in challenging business environments.
The Company’s internal controls cover a number of in-house
procedures and policies comprising among others, the relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has, through the
audit committee, reviewed and is generally satisfied with the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems, including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures
to enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and communicates efficiently with
the Company. Under the Articles of Association and the relevant
policies and procedures of the Company, the shareholders enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

1. convene an extraordinary general meeting/put

forward proposals:

Any one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held with two months after the deposit of such requisition
at the Company’s Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower
A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong
Kong. If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under Article 58 of the
Articles of Association once a valid requisition is received.

SEEREE

R\ B 3 R I BB A

ARBNAREREEEHARRARELE
ERER - RIAIEE - AILARRAETR
MABHERRETERKENERDTE -
RRARH AR E R EZ BN EREF REK
R BR(HTEE)EEYE - £EMEMR
EovE N R i SR BB AR 7 TET B 1A BB AR P LR

BEHAN EFECEBEZLZBSRMYL
ARYEMBARRR AR EZERGHN AR -
BIEERTRN ETERERKR - BHIIR
RURARAIE R B REBAENTES

R SR AER

RRABEERLAFRBERANIESF - £HAA
BREFEHEEANBER N ITEELENL
EARRABREE © RIFAMEZARNAR
RARMEBEBENREF  BRREA(HESTE
AT HER -

1. BRRRBEAE REEE:

T —BRZEREL2ERKAEFET
DRAR RSB RBA (AR AR B
RARE ERENEF) 52 —(10%)8
RE - BENIAERSBMESS K
ARRMERHERER  BEXRkEERY
BREBERFRIARE - LEEERERH
HEAMEREIE  BZASAREZ%
BRERRREEWEE - HUILAES
OB E G B3 EB AT LARE10EE -
BWMEARNERT - WE2% -1+ —8
N EESRBEFEEZAE @ AR
BARLARA R BAREERRS -
Mt AREZ R BAZERMEL
W—EEER - BHAAQRNERS
A o RIREIBBGEE R ER - ARRIGIE
B ERMAFEE8IM R T IREUEE T
B WIEHNBERHE -
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2. propose a person for election as a Director:
As regards to the procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to “Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as director”
under the section headed “Shareholders rights” of the
Company's website at www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

3. put forth enquiries to the Company:
Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board’s
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary
at the Company’s Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower A,
Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing and constructive
relationship with the shareholders, the Company has compiled
a shareholders communication policy and established various
channels of communication with the shareholders, such as
publication of interim reports and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company in
a timely manner. The shareholders are also encouraged to attend
the Company's annual general meetings where the Chairman and
members of different Board committees are available to answer
shareholders’ questions and exchange views with them.

Financial and other information in relation to the Group
has been published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's
website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Kwan Chuen who is the company secretary of the
Company, reports directly to the Board and is responsible for, inter
alia, providing updated and timely information to all Directors from
time to time.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Law has complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules and taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has also dedicated great effort towards protecting the
environment and supporting society. For details, please refer to
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual
report under the “Corporate Social Responsibility” subsection.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
Company has not made any changes to its Articles of Association.
An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is available
on both the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Company.

2. REBEAEZEES:
BRRBANBELEEENET - B2HA
A E A8 IEwWww.reginamiracleholdings.com
[AREEAER | — AR IRRREBAES
BERNEF] -

3. EAXRQATREER:
[RERERREEEE FTHAEEHTMN
EEANASEEARARNEBNERND
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SE RS SRR OARE 1042 o

REERRRBE

RERRERMEEFERAZRIENEE
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF REGINA MIRACLE
INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Regina
Miracle International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 63 to 143, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2016, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ek

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z2016F3 3310 [t F[E

2016 2015
20164 2015%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue A 5 5,081,774 4,192,009
Cost of sales SHE AR 9 (3,827,627) (3,212,625)
Gross profit EH 1,254,147 979,384
Other income E A 6 13,237 3,751
Other gains Emas 7 3,743 910
Distribution and selling expenses DRI ER 9 (124,112) (79,337)
General and administrative expenses ~ —f& RITHFIX 9 (354,692) (305,023)
Research and development costs s MR A 9 (151,005) (125,792)
Listing expenses WX 9 (37,121) (6,172)
Gains on derivative PTHEERIANFE 8
financial instruments, net 473 3,156
604,670 470,877
Finance income EUE AN 11 3,547 1,423
Finance costs B A5 R AR 11 (44,525) (52,119)
Finance costs, net ISP AN 558 (40,978) (50,696)
Profit before income tax BRET BB ADER 563,692 420,181
Income tax expense FriSEif sz 13 (121,638) (82,375)
Profit for the year attributable FREXDIAEAA
to owners of the Company FEARSER 442,054 337,806
Earnings per share attributable FERAERQFEEA
to the owners of the Company EhsRER
during the year
14 42.2 cents 38.2 cents
- basic and diluted —BEAREE Al il
The notes on pages 70 to 143 are an integral part of these FI0EV43E MM AR Z S HE M B WmE
consolidated financial statements. H—&5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEREKER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #£2016F3A31H [t F[E

2016 2015
20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Profit for the year FRRF 442,054 337,806

Other comprehensive (loss)/income: H#2HE(&EE) WA :
Items that have been reclassified or may 2 ZE# 748t AR E#E
be subsequently reclassified to profit — # o EZEz=EH

or loss
Currency translation differences SN E R (25,332) (5,824)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale At ESmEE

financial assets ASREV 6 18 1,161 2,749
Reclassification adjustment upon EZLHEHEE

assignment and disposal of SREERN

available-for-sale financial assets BENOERAE (3,430) (825)
Other comprehensive loss FREMZEEE

for the year, net of tax (B HKRHE) (27,601) (3,900)
Total comprehensive income KATEE AEN

attributable to owners Z2HEIALEE

of the Company 414,453 333,906

The notes on pages 70 to 143 are an integral part of these FI0EVIEMMTARKZSHRE M B WL
consolidated financial statements. B —&B5 ©
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARR

As at 31 March 2016 20163 A31H

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 15 1,980,100 1,067,422
Leasehold land and land use rights THE L 3h Ko 1 Hb {5 A #E 16 170,019 118,095
Intangible assets B EE 17 46,085 36,183
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESEE 18 48,626 89,393
Deposits and prepayments Re RIENFIE 21 80,015 14,219
Deferred tax assets TREFIIRE BE 28 = 597
2,324,845 1,325,909
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 701,739 573,715
Trade and bills receivables B EWERET L EREE 20 570,391 430,716
Deposits, prepayments and other %4 - JENFE R HmE
receivables &N 21 39,007 20,462
Amount due from a shareholder FEU —Z IS R FTA 22 - 500,740
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 18 - 4,949
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 27 4,732 1,341
Tax recoverable BIEEERE 1,811 4,581
Short-term bank deposits HISRTTIER 23 = 12,495
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEED 23 947,000 254,729
2,264,680 1,803,728
Total assets EEHE 4,589,525 3,129,637
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the owners of ZQFHEHE AELER
the Company
Share capital N 24 95,247 1
Reserves i 25 2,571,705 1,131,283
Total equity EREE 2,666,952 1,131,284

The notes on pages 70 to 143 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

70 1AM EBRZEEAMBEX
B~ -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARER

As at 31 March 2016 7201653 H31H

2016 AONES)
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings B 26 396,852 555,289
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEASIHREE 28 10,223 4,152
407,075 559,441
Current liabilities FREBaE
Trade payables B S EMNERR 29 260,834 356,588
Accruals and other payables FEEtE R R H ahfER I 30 467,818 241,761
Borrowings B 26 720,512 685,013
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMIT A 27 8,969 98,465
Current income tax liabilities BIHFTIS A E 57,365 57,085
1,515,498 1,438,912
_Total liabilities =~~~ 8f@® = 1922573 . 1,998,353
Total equity and liabilities EnkaEEn 4,589,525 3,129,637

EE1BENMERRE SR W BRE
25 «

The notes on pages 70 to 143 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FE3E143EMERE I HREREM20169F6 A
HFEESSUETRERETE -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 143 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2016 and were
signed on its behalf.

Hung Yau Lit Antony Yiu
iR Pk EL
Chairman Director
FE BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREREER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z2016F3 3310 [t F[E

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RATEE AES
Share capital Reserves Total
[N & #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T
As at 1 April 2014 7"2014F4 818 1 1,027,377 1,027,378
Total comprehensive income Z2HEWALLEE - 333,906 333,906
Transaction with owners EEEARS
Dividends (Note 31) A% 8 (M97E31) - (230,000) (230,000)
As at 31 March 2015 7201563 H31H 1 1,131,283 1,131,284
As at 1 April 2015 201554811 1 1,131,283 1,131,284
Total comprehensive income SHEWALLTE - 414,453 414,453
Transactions with owners BEEGEARS
Capitalisation of share premium N
(Note 24) (FffzE24) 68,852 (68,852) -
Issuance of ordinary shares BITE AR
(Note 24) (FffzE24) 26,394 1,873,406 1,899,800
Share issuance costs (Note 25) A& 21 TR AN (B 5E25) - (98,585) (98,585)
Dividends (Note 31) A% B (FF7E31) = (680,000) (680,000)
Total transaction with owners BEEEARSHE 95,246 1,025,969 1,121,215
As at 31 March 2016 201653 AH31H 95,247 2,571,705 2,666,952

70 1AM EBRZEEAMBEX
B~ -

The notes on pages 70 to 143 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #£2016F3A31H [t F[E

Cash flows from operating activities

REFDFERERE

2016
20164

HK$'000
BT T

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT T

Cash generated from operations KEEBGERE 32(a) 399,249 745,493
Profits tax paid SR FI 1R (111,920) (81,758)
Net cash generated from operating ETRE SIS F R

activities 287,329 663,735
Cash flows from investing activities R&EIEFMEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BELRE

equipment (885,571) (220,716)
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEE¥% - BEMEE

plant and equipment and AREREED

intangible assets Bt A (25,701) (6,787)
Purchase of leasehold land and BEHELHR

land use rights T A (23,423) (96,044)
Prepayments for purchase of BB T AEY

land use rights Bt A (50,490) (4,013)
Purchase of intangible assets BERLEE (21,160) (13,884)
Decrease of short-term bank deposits  %2HE$EITF 2R 12,495 49,202
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEK

plant and equipment RABFTSE0R = 30
Additions of available-for-sale financial & RAJLEESRIEE

assets (7,664) (15,833)
Proceeds from disposals of HEAHBESREE

available-for-sale financial assets Fri850A 10,031 14,640
Payments for settlement of derivative  &E ST 4RI T AR

financial instruments (92,414) (6,232)
Interest received BUFIE 3,547 1,423
Increase in amount due from JFEU— B AR SR RIEE N

a shareholder (134,437) (286,728)
Net cash used in investing activities K& ESFTAE ST (1,214,787) (584,942)

The notes on pages 70 to 143 are an integral part of these FI0EVIEMMTARKZSHRE M B WL

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GBERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z2016F3 3310 [t F[E

2016 2015
20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Cash flows from financing activities &S IEFMEESRE

Proceeds from borrowings EEGIR el 422,760 485,369
Repayments of borrowings BEER (545,698) (412,469)
Interest paid EH%IJ (55,529) (52,119)
Proceeds from issuance of BATLBARFTSRIA

ordinary shares 1,899,800 -
Share issuance costs B&AD BETTRCAR (98,585) -
Repayment to a related party BiE—aREHZIE - (61,696)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REESRE(FrR)

financing activities N4 EE 1,622,748 (40,915)
Net increase in cash and cash RERREEEYIEM

equivalents B 695,290 37,878
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#IE& KRG EEY

of the year 254,729 217,696
Currency translation differences INEE IR = R (3,019) (845)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FREBEMREEEY

of the year 23 947,000 254,729

The notes on pages 70 to 143 are an integral part of these FI0EV43E MM AR Z S HE M B WmE
consolidated financial statements. H—&5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

70

GENERAL INFORMATION

Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
21 September 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of bras, intimate wear, bra pads, other molded
products and functional sports products.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

The Company has listed its shares on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) on 8 October 2015 (the “Listing”).
In connection with the global offering completed on 8
October 2015 and the exercise of the over-allotment option
completed on 14 October 2015, the Company issued a
total of 339,250,000 shares at a price of HK$5.60 per share
for a total proceeds (before related fees and expenses) of
HK$1,899,800,000.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  #¥ #e BIBS(

—RER
B RER(ER) ARAT (AR

A1) MR2010F9A21 ARIEFA =SS
REVE(2010F BRI A) EFR £ Eﬁ%
MK REREERAR - AR

5 fff 9% =5 52 &9 b 4ik & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

KRB RIREERAR > MAMBER
RETFERFLEENEENE K
W~ KA R AR B EE R TR 1L E
ENIEEM ©

BREEREIN  ZEWBHRERNE
BT (BB TTINR -

KRAB DR 2015F10 A8HEFH
BERSGMERAR ([ EBBRA])
EREM(NET]) » B9 B3 2015
F10A8H M B EREE & 2015%F 10
R14B=ERITEBERRERS -
FiN/N ﬂb{iﬁ&;‘%ﬁ%soﬂwﬁmﬁﬁ
4 #£339,250,000 & B 15+ AT 5K 1B
ﬁ@%ﬁ(?ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ&&ﬁﬁw )7,%,%%1%
1,899,800,0007T °

EXETBERBE

RAEZEVBHRERMANEIESHK
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BRNE 2 FEERER
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2.1

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (including
derivative financial instruments), which are carried at fair
values.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity or areas when assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note
4 below.

Amendments to existing standards effective in financial
year beginning 1 April 2015

The following amendments to standards are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2015. The
adoption of these amendments to standards does not have
any significant impact to the results and financial position of
the Group:

HKAS 19 (2011)
(Amendment)
HKFRSs (Amendment)

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions
Annual improvements 2012 cycle

HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual improvements 2013 cycle

2.1

(a)

e R BRRME

BEXETHEREW)

mAERE
ZEGEAVBRROCRRAAEBERE
BB EREEN( BB BRESE
AGRE - ZREERAMBRRIRESL
RAERGEE  YOAER[AIHEE
EWEE  RAFEFABRIIER
FEARNEHEERERAGB(RE
PTHEERM TR EHER] »

RETEBRAMB RS EANNT R
REEEAETEEZGFH AT - BT
FEEEEERAAKENGTER
BREPITEEAE - P RREHEK
BEEENENEE - 305 RE I ®R
RIFLEABRKRMMAFTOEE - 1974
T FFARE -

R2015F4 5 1H B B F B FI16 £ 387

BEEAEET

LA ERIAE AT 74201654 A1 B A
JEET AR HIE A o IR ZF AR

RIS BT E] A SR B /) 2 48 K B 5 AR e 3

EERNERTE

EREHERIZE195E FERMETE

(20114 (BFTA)  BEHK
BERYBWMEERN 20126 EH

CCHEN) ZFEE
AR WMEER  2013FEH

(EETA) 2 FEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.1
(b)

72

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
New standards and amendments to existing standards (b)
have been issued but are not effective for the financial

year beginning 1 April 2015 and have not been early

adopted by the Company

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HAGFHERIE1EBRTA)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

BB G ERIZE165 &
ARG EAIEISREBETA)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

BB G ERIZE165 &
BEAGEERIFELRUSFTR)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)
BB G ERIE275R(ERTA)

HKFRS 9
BRI EEFETE

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

BB B S LRI 105 &
BAGEERIFE285R (1BFTA)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BB EERIZE 1058 -
BB BERELERIE125% &
BAGEERIFE 285 (1BFTA)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

ERPBHREENE1RUERTA)

BERETHEREW)

21 EEEEE)

E BB R IR20155F4 5 1H FF15 89
B B B T A L A AR B R
HIBTERI R B HEBRIEET

Disclosure initiative

WETE

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

AEZMITE REHTENER

Agriculture: Bearer plants
B AEMEY

Equity method in separate financial statements
& AT RS R DA

Financial instruments
TRITA

Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture

EERABEARIHEERRZHEY
AELESTA

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation
exception
KREERE  ERASHHOLIIMER

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations

WES A B E TR S SRR

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiRBE(ZER)ERA T

Effective for
accounting

periods beginning

on or after

RUTRfg 2%

PRI E R AR

1 April 2016
20165F4A1H

1 April 2016
20165F4A1H

1 April 2016
20165F4A1H

1 April 2016
20165F4A1H

1 April 2018
2018F4A1H

To be determined

==

~FE

1 April 2016
20165F4A1H

1 April 2016
20165F4A1H



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards
have been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 April 2015 and have not been early
adopted by the Company (Continued)

HKFRS 14
EBEIMEREERE 1455 EEIRIERRF
HKFRS 15

BRI REERE 155 BEPEKHWA
HKFRSs (Amendment)
BB R EEA(EFTAR) 2014 F R FEUE
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of the new standards and amendments to existing
standards upon initial application. So far, it has concluded
that the new standards and amendments to existing
standards are unlikely to have significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions
that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Regulatory deferral accounts

Revenue from contracts with customers

Annual improvements 2014 cycle

e R BRRME

2 EBEASHTHEEREw@)

21 EEEEE)

(b) CEHEMEEKR20155F451H 15
B B B R T A 2 A AR B R
HIFTERI R B HEBRIEET ()

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

RUT Bz 2%
BB E B AR

1 April 2016
201654818

1 April 2018
201854818

1 April 2016
201654818

ZRE BRI R VA FE AT AT A &
BEEANERTNTZE - 25”1
AEBRREMFETER MIRB LR
BRI R ARA BB A RBENZRE XS
R BIRIEREATE -

22 MEAFE

221 HEAK
MEAR D AEEYEBIEHENE
B(pELEEEERE) BEA5EAS
EERFELHREMBEMS oA
Bl ¥ i) @ sk A - P 8BS iR H A 2%
EREMNENVEZSOR  BIRAE
EHZERAGERE - WEBARMA
THIEEEAREE BESGA AR
PERIER I 2 BiS IEARA ASR -

SEARFHENRS  BEHERRX T
B3 - ERIEFEENSBEARRM
MR ZMESENREERITTTIAY
o EBENBERT  SREHBER
B ERTER - DAREIR BN &R B TR
MHBERER 2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

74

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2
221
(a)

BERETHEREW)

M A E (&)

BEAAEE)

HBAf
AEMREBEEBLEAHAE -
B — R M A m PR (R B R BT
WRAE  WIRKEIRIEAAEE
HIBE - RANE BT AR R
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Wi B R P EERE S - A&
W TE S O - A TR IE
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2

2.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

2.3

24
(i)

(ii)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwiill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’'s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is United States Dollar ("US$"”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$"),
which is the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2

2.2

e R BRRME

BEXETHEREW)

(5] PNSIE)

222 BUHKEE

2.3

24
(i)

(ii)

R B R BRI E TR AR (E
FIfR - MANBIRIREERBERE -
MEBARZEERARRIRE R ER
BRI EEARR o

P H B A R IR E EE IR B G
ZEMBARNEIRRESMENZE
WA BRI ERBIL MBI A
MEREEBAREHREEFE(RH
BE)NEEMBRRANEEE - A
RURI R BB B 2 FIRE R ITRIE
A, o

HAMEEBEER
MREEH -2
BERAREREREEDMOEER
KEHERE - WE B A IE LR
REMIEERBE -

INEIRE

HEER 2H|E
AEEEEROM B REI A
B DRZEENTIEREMELE
REMEMRNEE (IR ]
E - FARRWIgEE8 RET(IX
D) BBHmERTIAREENZSE
KRB (TBEDED -

XERE
INERXZRIFERNRITERGRE
R EE  AEEZERH AR
FRBEXGREUIINESERENDN
EREERAGBMELMNINERS -
TIRERE e R IER ©

FFIR4E2015/16 ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 75



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

24
(iii)

25

76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy), that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

24
(iii)
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2.6

2.7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives using the

following depreciation rates, as follows:

Building 5% or over the unexpired
period of the lease

Over the unexpired period
of the lease

7% to 10%

20% to 33%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Office furniture

and fixtures
Computer equipment
Motor vehicles

20% to 33%
20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings.
No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and are available for the intended use. When
the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note
2.5 above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost represents upfront prepayments made
for the rights to use the land over the lease term of 43 to
50 years. Amortisation of leasehold land is expressed in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

25
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2.7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.8

29

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Computer software

Acquired computer software license is capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software.
The computer software acquired is carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment.
These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives
of 5to 10 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets and liabilities

78

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets and financial
liabilities in the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(1) Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets/liabilities held for trading.
A financial asset/liability is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categorized as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Balances in this category are classified as current
assets/liabilities.

2.8

2.9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date, in which
case they are classified as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount
due from a shareholder, short term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance
sheet.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are
recognised on the trade-date being the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category
are presented in the consolidated income statement, in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in
consolidated income statement when our right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income. When securities classified as
available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

80

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities and insurance policy investments, if any
such evidence exists, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument and insurance
policy investments classified as available for sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

2.13 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair values on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values.

Changes in fair value of the derivative financial instruments
which do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

82

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturity of 3 months or
less and bank overdrafts.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.18 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings and borrowing costs
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred.

Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred taxation

(i)

(ii)

84

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Group operates
and generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred taxation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations
Group companies operate several defined contribution
retirement schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12
months and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.

2.22 Provisions

86

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to anyone item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

(i)

(ii)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns and discounts and
after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of goods

Sale of goods are recognised when a Group's entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
values where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are credited to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Leases (as the lessee)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

2.26 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements.

When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

2.27 Dividend distribution

(a)

88

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
including price risk, cash flow interest rate risk, foreign
exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to
hedge foreign exchange risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
The hedges do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.
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(a)
(i)

(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Price risk

Majority of the raw materials used by the Group are
polyester, polyamide and spandex and are subject to market
price risk. The Group has not used any hedging activities to
hedge its exposure to market price risk.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group is exposed to price risk
of debt securities and investment funds because certain
investments held by the Group classified in the consolidated
balance sheet as available-for-sale financial assets. Other
comprehensive income would increase/decrease as a result
of gains/losses on these instruments.

As at 31 March 2015, if there had been a 5% change in the
market value of these debt securities and investment funds
classified as available-for-sale financial assets, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s total comprehensive
income would have been increased/decreased by
approximately HK$442,000.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has no debt securities and
investment funds.

Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
deposits, the Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its borrowings with floating interest rates.
These borrowings expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. To manage any exposure arising from the changes
in market interest rates, the Group entered into interest rate
swap, in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specified
intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate
interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-
upon notional principal amount. This interest rate swap is
not qualified as hedging for accounting purposes. As at 31
March 2016, the Group has no outstanding interest rate
swap contract.

As at 31 March 2016, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$1,348,000 (2015: HK$7,821,000), resulting from the
changes in borrowing costs of net borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, United States
Dollar and Renminbi. Most of its sales proceeds were
received in United States Dollar, and most of the purchases
are conducted in United States Dollar.

Hong Kong Dollar is pegged with United States Dollar, thus
foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The
Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate
a proportion of its exposures on Renminbi against United
States Dollar. These foreign exchange forward contracts
are not qualified as hedging for accounting purposes.
Management will continue to monitor foreign currency
exchange exposure and will take prudent measures to
minimise the currency translation risk.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has limited Euro (“EUR")
denominated trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, borrowings and trade and other payables. The
foreign exchange exposure in respect of EUR is considered
as minimal.

As at 31 March 2016, if Renminbi had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against United States Dollar with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year ended 31 March
2016 would have been approximately HK$320,000 (2015:
HK$766,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
trade and other payables held by the Group's entities in
Hong Kong.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade and
bills receivables, other receivables and deposits and bank
deposits. The carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk arising from bank
deposits, deposits are mainly placed with reputable banks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's credit risk is concentrated on a number of major
and long established customers. As at 31 March 2016, trade
and bills receivables from the top five customers represent
approximately 46% (2015: 49%) of the Group’s total trade
and bills receivables. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to customers with appropriate
credit history and to limit the amount of credit exposure to
individual customer. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group's past
experience in collection of trade and bills receivables falls
within the recorded allowances.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has no outstanding
amount due from a shareholder. As at 31 March 2015,
management considers the credit risk for amount due from
the shareholder to be minimal after considering his financial
condition and other factors.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its working capital requirements through
a combination of funds generated from its operations and
bank borrowings. The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and have sufficient available
funding through committed credit facilities to meet its
working capital requirements. The directors believe that the
Group has maintained sufficient general banking facilities
for financing capital commitment in the near future and for
working capital purposes.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of HK$947,000,000 (2015: HK$254,729,000)
and trade and bills receivables of HK$570,391,000 (2015:
HK$430,716,000), respectively, that are expected to readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The tables below analyse the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The analysis shows the cash outflow based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements, while
interest payments are computed using contractual rates.
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(a)
v)

Within
1 year

—

HK$'000
BT

As at 31 March 2016 A2016%3H31H

R ERE s

MBRERERE)
mBELmE(E)

% 0 T BRI 1R B 5K Mok P 80 196 TE 2R K
HIMBEERE - MABFRARE HF

Between
2 and 5
years
—EREF
HK$'000
BT

Between
1and 2
years
—ZE=fF
HK$'000
BT

Total
st
HK$'000
BT

Trade payables B S ERERR 260,834 - - 260,834
Accruals and other payables &zt B & E b fE( 7008 292,100 = = 292,100
Borrowings & 720,512 321,956 74,896 1,117,364
Bank interest payables FERTERITHIE 15,260 8,045 2,065 25,370
1,288,706 330,001 76,961 1,695,668
As at 31 March 2015 7201553 H31H
Trade payables B S ENBERER 356,588 - - 356,588
Accruals and other payables Bzt % 3 & H b fEf Z0E 114,860 - - 114,860
Borrowings BN 685,013 341,845 213,444 1,240,302
Bank interest payables FERTERITR B 20,213 11,210 3,411 34,834
1,176,674 353,055 216,855 1,746,584
Fair value estimation (b) AF{EfET

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial
assets, including cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits, amount due from a shareholder, trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, and the
Group's current financial liabilities, including trade payables,
accruals and other payables and borrowings, approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities. Available-for-
sale financial assets and derivative financial instruments are
at fair values. For the non-current portion of the borrowings,
as the borrowings bear floating rates, the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values. The nominal value less
estimated credit adjustments for financial assets and
liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed
to approximate their fair values.

AEERDEREE(BRRENIAS
EEY  BHRTER  BE—BK
RIE - EHRYRRA R ERERE
e REMRYGKIR) RAEE RS
BREE(RRESERNERR  EAER
RE RN TR RER) BNARE -
HEFHMERAFERS - AHEES
MEERTEER T ARAFES
B - EFERIHE oM E - RS
RIBFHAERGRE - HREERAQF
ERE - —FRAIHENEREER
BEMS  EERGETEEIRTIR
REE N FERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRRERE@
(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) RAFEMEFE)

TRIBBHETEDTRAFEFE
WERMTE - TRBRFENT :

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

AEMSHTEEHRNEESLR
EFTRAARFERE(E—R) -

F—RIE - AIRBEE (B
RER) REZ(AIRERSH)
BREAELABMSHNEAR
EEZR) -

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level o
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o  WIHAIRBEEMSEBREEN
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) BEMGEMNEASE (BT
(level 3). R ABUR) (=) °

The following table presents the Group’'s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value:

TRENAREBEZATVEAENEE
RAE:

Total
et
HK$°000
BT T

Level 3
E=R
HK$’000
BT T

Level 2
et
HK$°000
BT T

Level 1
EF—&

HK$"000
BETT

As at 31 March 2016 720163 H31H

Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial At ESREE
assets - - 48,626 48,626
Derivative financial PTHESRBMTIA
instruments:
— Shareholder —BBEE
indemnification SN 3 2R
in relation to the A HEER
settlement losses &R E
of foreign exchange
forward contracts - 4,732 = 4,732
Liabilities =E
Derivative financial PTEERTIA
instruments:
— Foreign exchange —HINEREIE A
forward contracts - 8,969 = 8,969
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

3

(b)

Level 1
F—

HK$'000
BT

As at 31 March 2015

Assets

Available-for-sale financial
assets

R2015%3A31H
BE
A ESREARE

BRERER @)
N EMGEE)

Total
5t
HK$'000
BT

Level 3
F=M
HK$'000
AT

Level 2
FER
HK$'000
BT T

8,834 85,508 94,342

Derivative financial PTHESRTIA

instruments:

— Foreign exchange
forward contracts

— Interest rate swap

contracts

—SMNEEHIEH

—FREHEH

1,340 - 1,340

Liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments:
— Foreign exchange
forward contracts
— Interest rate swap
contracts

afE
ITHEERTA

—SNEERHIGH

—MEEHEL

90,832 - 90,832

7,633 - 7,633

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, there
were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities between
level 1, level 2 and level 3.

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange or
dealer, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

REE2016F & 2015F3A31 B IEF
B F—% F_LARE=H2EH
BEMEERBBEEE -

F-REMBITA

EERMSEENeRTAMNAFEE
ERERGEEBNMISREET - 10
BERERS R E HIMB R B AT R 53R
B BZEHRERKRKRATRIIER
LEMBEITNMERS - AEMISA
WREBZRMSE AEEMBEHE
EFfRMESREABRITEAE - 25
TEIAE—F -

FoREHBTA
WIEERMHEBENITESRITARDN
AT ERFAMERMEE - S
BEEMZEFNAIRENAIEETS
HiE BELKBERETEE -0
AFEIAMENEZBERBAES
AER  ZTARSIASE = -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 2 (Continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

° Quoted market prices from banks or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves.

o The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
and the related shareholder indemnification from Mr.
Hung Yau Lit are determined using forward exchange
rates, risk-free rates and volatility at the balance sheet
date. Simulation techniques were used to project
the future foreign exchange rates, upon which the
payoff of the contract would be determined. The fair
values represents the average discounted payoff of
thousands of simulation iteration.

Financial instruments in level 3

The fair value of unlisted insurance policy investments that
is not traded in an active market is determined by reference
to the expected return from the insurance policy investment
which in turn is mainly derived from the account value of the
insurance policy.

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

(b)

e R BRRME
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o
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. FIEEBATERETHEES
#R - BRI SR BT
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o EHPMESHRTERKBHRK
FErERRERRmEERER
HeEAER - SRR KR
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AIRKRER - WERIBHEFSL
HE - X FEASBT RIERE
A REIR IR

EF=RELMTA
JELETIRBRIEE W IENERTIS LR
5 EATED2EZRBIEENTE
HEsmEE - MEDHZKEERAR
BRIFESEE -

TRENEHZE2016 %2015F3A31H
HEEE=HITASS -

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

As at 1 April ®4H1H 85,508 67,987

Additions NE 7,664 15,833

Assignment (Note 34(a)) a2 (f15E34(a)) (44,823) -
Fair value gain recognised to other REMEEREE

comprehensive income N ERE 277 1,688

As at 31 March M3H31H 48,626 85,508

Total gains or losses for the year
included in profit or loss for assets
held at the end of the year

FRFBEET ABEH
FRWRRREIREER

Changes in fair value gains or losses
for the year included in profit or loss
at the end of the year

Wan sk EHEEH)

FRAABENFARFE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’'s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholder and benefits for
other stakeholders. In order to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholder, return capital
to shareholder, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group had a gearing
ratio of 6% and 86%, respectively. This ratio is calculated
as net debts (represented by bank borrowings less the cash
and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits) divided
by total equity. The gearing ratios were as follows:

3
(c)

R ERE s

EXEBRER
AEEREREANBRA/RENEE
FELENRD  EtTMARRRERD
H o REMFSARERENZ - B
ERREERNRBAREERKE -
REBEMREFHERNBRROKEE
B MBREREREER - BITHAREH
EEENRBDET ©

AEEEREERBLEREREE
AR o 7220164 201543 A31H » A&
FEEEABLESFIAE6%M86% -
L RARER (BIRTTIERURIR & &
ReEEYREHRITEIORERLS
BitH - BEEABLEET :

2016
20165

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Total borrowings (Note 26) B4R (FI5E26) 1,117,364 1,240,302
Less: AR

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) He M EEW(FIFE23) (947,000) (254,729
Short-term bank deposits (Note 23) R HRRT T 3R (B EE23) - (12,495)
Net debt SRERE 170,364 973,078
Total equity B 2,666,952 1,131,284
Gearing ratio BEBELX 6% 86%

The decrease in the gearing ratio for the year ended 31
March 2016 resulted primarily from increase in cash and
cash equivalents from the IPO proceeds.

BE201643A31 A ILFEAEA KL
FROEEHNERAABEMER
BEERS KRS SEWHR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. Write-downs of inventories are recorded where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers
and other debtors and the current market condition, and
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Provisions
are applied to receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of receivables and the provision for impairment losses
in the year in which such estimate has been changed.
Management reassesses the provision at each balance
sheet date.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Vietnam. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Valuation of unlisted financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial instruments recorded in the
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using valuation techniques
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are less than previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.

4

(c)

(d)

(e)

FESTHEF R HE o)

FRiS®t

REBARER - P EKEBEEAT
B EETEHEHEGE  FEF
HEARHAE - ERAFEEBHBIET - &
DR BT RIS R RRHGERE
BEFEIEERR - AEBEREMG
EBBBNBEIINK - LB HIARE
REME - WZEETENKERIBE
BRRBENARESE  ZEZE8FE
2R TE A B ) B BA T 18 RO AE T
THEE

FLTEmMIAMRKE
BRI R A RN SR T AR
BEEZEEBMSEH  MHEER
ZRBETEA(BRERTHIFR
%) WEEEMABHERTA - B3R
RenENT R EERVEE
ZEEI A B B T B SR M5 EL
S(anmrae) - MEMA AT - BIZEREER
FEAHEFHRIZE A H T -

M BERREHUERAFH
KFEREE
AEEEREETEYME  BFE MK
wETAERFY  NREEREH
FEEM - ZMEEH T ARLIEE &I
ENYE  BERRENERAER
FHBEEERAEE  WABEEARK
BT B FHFHRRITEEAHNR
JE T R B DA o e T {65 A 4R B BRI B4
BEREAMGEFO/EED - AIE
EEMIEMTEEM - SO H MR
EEE N E A RIEE IR
BE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the "“Executive
Directors”) are the Group's chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors
for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Executive Directors review the performance of the
Group mainly from the product perspective. The Group is
organised into three segments engaged in manufacturing
and trading of:

(i) Bras and intimate wear;

(i) Bra pads and other molded products; and

(i) Functional sports products.

e R BRRME

7 ERE R
ARARTESE([HITES]) ALK
BHERLERRE - EEHECRE
WMITEER N RE RN HEERRA
FrEMMENEELEDE -

WTEEFTIZNERAEEHAEE
MER - AEBESR=MEDH  KF
()  MWEREFAK:

(i MR EMERER &

(i) IheeltESREM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

100

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of gross profit of
each segment, which is consistent with that of the financial
statements. Other information, as noted below, is also
provided to the Executive Directors. The revenue reported to
the Executive Directors is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated income statement.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong.

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2016 are
as follows:

Bras and
intimate

wear

HEx
BEEARK
HK$’'000
BETT

D ERE R ()

HITEFREMBRIATOEDH
EMFREEEDMHKRER - MTPT
o EmEMTDIRHTRITES -
FMITEFRENRATIZEEE WK
SREBBWIAE -

RRAFRRERE -

HZE2016F3A31 B IFFEM DA HEE
LI

Bra pads
and other
molded
products
FaR R EAt
BRBER
HK$'000
BETT

Functional
sports
products
TheEtE
EESEM
HK$'000
BT T

Total

st
HK$'000
BT

Total segment revenue o EBEBUTA 3,561,151 964,563 556,060 5,081,774
Gross profit/segment results EFDEELE 828,897 273,463 151,787 1,254,147
Other income HAd A 13,237
Other gains Hed gz 3,743
Distribution and selling expenses 94 REEHL (124,112)
General and administrative — M RITHRAX

expenses (354,692)
Research and development costs  FfiZER A (151,005)
Listing expenses WX (37,121)
Gains on derivative financial TSR T AT

instruments, net 473
Finance income R TN 3,547
Finance costs BTSN (44,525)
Profit before income tax BRETISHAT R T 563,692
Income tax expense FrisBifX (121,638)
Profit for the year FREF 442,054

Other segment item included in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2016 is as follows:

Depreciation included in FAHERRWINE
cost of sales

53,846

DIAEE2016F3A31 B IEFELHRA I
HRMNEMSIEHMOT ¢

47,074 8,407 109,327
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2015 are

as follows:

e R BRRME

DEBER ()

BZ201543 431 B IHER D BEE
T

Bra pads
Bras and and other  Functional
intimate molded sports
wear products products Total
MmER R R EA aelE
BEH K EEER EPEESD st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT BT T BT
Total segment revenue o EBHBUTA 2,941,077 774,793 476,139 4,192,009
Gross profit/segment results EFDEELE 648,897 220,542 109,945 979,384
Other income Hg A 3,751
Other gains Himlzk 910
Distribution and selling expenses 95 & H &R (79,337)
General and administrative —MRRITHRAX
expenses (305,023)
Research and development costs  FfiZ5R A (125,792)
Listing expenses EmRx (6,172)
Gains on derivative financial TSR T AR FE
instruments, net 3,156
Finance income BT 1,423
Finance costs BITERK A (52,119)
Profit before income tax BT SR ANE R 420,181
Income tax expense FTSTiFx (82,375)
Profit for the year F R 337,806

Other segment item included in the consolidated income

statement for the year ended 31

Depreciation included in cost
of sales

March 2015 is as follows:

FFABERARNITE
50,918

DIAEE2015F3A31HIFHIFELA
I RMEMSEBEE AT

44,871 8,243 104,032

FER%E2015/16 ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

101



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2#ERw@

RBEF ARSI D NINEDEP KA

Revenue from external customers based on the destination

102

of the customers are as follows:

T

2016
20164

HK$'000
BT T

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT T

United States EJE| 3,130,440 2,569,062
The PRC i 526,638 366,246
Europe BOM 387,671 313,762
Hong Kong BB 268,677 296,235
South-east Asia (Note a) REgoe(f5Ta) 219,827 220,296
South Asia (Note b) m 2 (Mi7Eb) 114,294 77,982
Japan B 55,037 71,798
Other countries/regions (Note c) EMmER R (Mic) 379,190 276,628

5,081,774 4,192,009

Note a:  Includes Malaysia, Indonesia, Singapore, Philippines, Vietnam
and Thailand.

Note b:  Includes Bangladesh, Sri Lanka and India.

Note ¢:  Include Taiwan, Turkey, Australia, Colombia and others.

No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is
presented as they are not regularly provided to the Executive
Directors.

Non-current assets, other than available-for-sale financial
assets, of the Group are located in the following

ffifa: BEBRAEDR - EEEFED - ¥
% SEEE - HEEER -

fftb :  BEZMNA - HEFRREE -

fige: @IEAM - LEH RN - Fh
TR -

BRI EEHANTEFTREEDHLE
EXDHMBENER RALEZ25|D
HREEX D R EHI -

AEENFERBEEFRAFEEESR
BEINRIRA T IR [ 1, -

geographical areas:

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T ST T

The PRC P 950,327 929,666
Hong Kong BE 64,688 37,947
Vietnam HE 1,261,204 268,903
2,276,219 1,236,516
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2&ER@®
An analysis of the Group’s major customers, each of which I ANEE10% 3k A ESNEBUR A By AR &
accounts for 10% or more of the Group's external revenue, is BFrEEZHFOWWT :
as follows:

Customer Location Segments 2016 2015
BF g 2% 20165 20166

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB

Customer A ZFEA United States ~ %H Bras and intimate wear B % 85 & A&k 1,443,559 1,257,876
Customer B ZFB United States ~ %H Bras and intimate wear B % 85 & A&k 539,056 373,672
Customer B EFB United States 56 Bra pads and other R REMERER
molded products 136,910 98,970
CustomerC  ZFC United States ~ %H Bras and intimate wear B %85 & A&k 585,793 486,209
CustomerD  ZFD United States Functional sports products ~ JhgcIHESNSEE @ 523,521 N/A
NEf
6 OTHERINCOME 6 HlA
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Scrap sales income EEREMEEIRA 3,236 2,828
Dividend income from financial assets Iz A EzH AIBZHY
at fair value through profit or loss CREEMNRELRA = 384
Government grants BB 8,672 -
Others Hith 1,429 539
13,237 3,751
7 OTHER GAINS 7 Hblks
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEESMEE RS
financial assets 3,743 -
Gain on financial assets at fair value NS = DN =Ft
through profit or loss TEEEKE - 910

3,743 910
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FEMBRRMEE

8 GAINS ON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 8 (THEEmTIAWRFRE
INSTRUMENTS, NET

2016 2015
20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Fair value gains/(losses) on derivative  $74 &gt TEAFE

financial instruments Wz, (E518)
— foreign exchange forward contracts ~ —4MEREIA 4
(Note 27) (B7£27) 3,069 (14,993)
- interest rate swap contracts — KB E L
(Note 27) (fg7E27) = 2,750
- shareholder indemnification in —ERAINERIIA L4
relation to the settlement losses E BRI R a8
of foreign exchange forward (fg3E27)
contracts (Note 27) 4,732 -
(Losses)/gains on settlement of THEERTALE
derivative financial instruments (E518), Wzs
— foreign exchange forward contracts ~ —4MEREIA L)
(Note 27) (P5E27) (7.358) 10,180
- interest rate swap contracts — BB E L
(Note 27) (P5E27) 30 (4,926)
— equity put options (Note) — IR R HA A (P 5E) = 10,145
473 3,156
Note: The Group entered into equity put options with a bank during the MisE : AEBAEZE2015F3A31BIEFEE
year ended 31 March 2015. There were no outstanding equity put —MRITRI IR ARG EBHEER - B
options as at 31 March 2016 and 2015. 2016%F [22015F3 A31H + ANEE I H

FARITENBRARE HE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 BRUHEIIHEX
Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution and selling FPABERAN s DHEMEERYT - —
expenses, general and administrative expenses, research MR 1T S R 5T e R B AR AN DA B

and development costs and listing expenses are analysed as

follows:

Amortisation of leasehold land and land

2016
20164

HK$'000
BT T

THE 3 % o+ b i PR A 8

EHRAXANEERAIANET

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT T

use rights (Note 16) (MtzE16) 2,709 403
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEAESE

(Note 17) (FF&E17) 8,509 4,530
Auditor's remuneration ZEEB &

(excluded listing expenses) (TEELEMRS)

— Audit services — % H R 2,500 750

— Non-audit services — SRS 1,137 2,867
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - RERERERTE

equipment (Note 15) (fF5E15) 132,469 126,468
Bank charges RITE A 2,371 3,471
Consumables FEM 111,035 68,545
Cost of inventories sold (Note 19) BEEFEKRA(FHE19) 1,827,479 1,687,928
Donations B 1,347 1,439
Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) (B E@FFZ (Fi5E10) 1,953,807 1,487,387
Freight and transportation expenses BENERRAL 67,650 36,155
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HE¥% - BE MR EEE

equipment 559 76
Operating lease rental of land and T REFHSEHERS

buildings 79,581 67,259
Utilities NAR® 114,517 101,263
Listing expenses Baiilhg 37,121 6,172
Others Eih 151,766 134,236

4,494,557 3,728,949
Representing: Bl -
Cost of sales HERA 3,827,627 3,212,625
Distribution and selling expenses DI NMIHER Y 124,112 79,337
General and administrative expenses —MRITHEY 354,692 305,023
Research and development costs R BE AR AR 151,005 125,792
Listing expenses Baiil=h3 37,121 6,172
4,494,557 3,728,949
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

10 E)ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁi(@ﬁ%%@ﬂ

2016 AONES)

20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances I& - #& - {E4L & JE8L 1,754,172 1,379,324
Retirement benefit costs — defined RINEARA—E#E

contribution schemes (Note (a)) HEEEI (MR () 168,822 80,875

Staff welfare and benefits 8 TEMMFIZE 30,813 27,188

1,953,807 1,487,387

(a) Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution

schemes

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the PRC government. The Group contributes a certain
percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees,
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The state-managed retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the
retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group's
and the employees’ contributions were subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2015: one) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in
Note 36. The emoluments payable to the remaining one
(2015: four) individual during the year are as follows:

(a)

(b)

RAKBER KA — ERBEMAKEE

ARBRH BN E R RHESBEK
JiF 8 72 1 B 21 & B AR R AR M B B9 A
8 - AEEZNBEARREFENE
TEOLMHR - BRFEEHRI - BE
E—TERGNERARSSIORIKEREHN
WEME - BRERARATEERR
KEEXNE2HMERS -

REBLZHEFBREE L EHIER
HEastal([aEestsl))  BEEst
B ERBYZTAEENTEHRAG
2o REmESHE  AEERHERE
EZEFAREEBAE(FERERAHIE
PNHEEEN)5% M EEH R - &
SEMEESENEAERLERAES
#1,5007T  MBELZESBOERAS
AI{EE FBIEERIMESR o

EEEREFAL

FAREERERSHAT(BENE
EE(20155F : —2&))WF BRI FE36
B DT RBR o RAFE - BHH
—H AT (20159 : UZ)HEBNT -

2016
20164

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances  T& - ¥4 - JEAL KR 284 2,108 8,456

Retirement benefit costs — IRIRAEFIRA — B8R
defined contribution schemes a2 37 104
2,145 8,560
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FEMBRRMEE

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10 EEGANBEXX(BREEEM
(INCLUDING DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS) 1)
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) ERESFHALT@E)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: HENFIA T EEA -

Number of individuals

AB
2016 AONES)
20164 20154
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) SrENEEE (LB ET)
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 7B #1,500,001T2
7 #2,000,0007T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 7B #2,000,001 T2
75 HK$2,500,0007T 1 3
11 FINANCE COSTS, NET 11 BB FEEE
2016 AONES)
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T AR T
Finance income U AL N
— interest income on bank deposits —RITTF R BURA 3,547 1,423
Finance costs EUE A%
— interest expense on amount due to — BN —RAE I8
a related party (Note 34(a)) K9 B 5 2 (K 5E34(a)) - (951)
— interest expense on borrowings — RN ER (55,529) (51,168)
(565,529) (52,119)
Less: interest expenses capitalised A BRMEF B 11,004 -
(44,525) (52,119)
Finance costs, net B TP AN F 5B (40,978) (50,696)
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e RBRRME

12 SUBSIDIARIES

12

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2016:

Directly held by the Company

AAREERS

Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited

HURER(ER)BERAA

Indirectly held by the Company

ARBEEEE

Regina Miracle International
(Group) Limited

HURER(RE)BERRA

Regina Miracle International
Limited
BY R ERAERAT

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited
BRADEARORYNERAF

Honour First (Hong Kong)
Limited
EH(EB)ERAT

Regina Miracle (Shenzhen)
Limited
BEPFAR ORI ERAF

108

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
MRt 2R
FEERRR

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

ERERHS -
BREFAHR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
Fit BREERT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
Fit BREERT

The People's Republic
of China (the “PRC"),
limited liability
company

FEARLMB(HE])
BREFAHR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
Fit BREERA

The PRC, limited liability
company
FE - EREEAT

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BRITRARE
BRA /AR

US$100
100%E7T

HK$5,000,000
#5,000,0007T

HK$100

AE1007T

HK$300,000,000
#£300,000,0007T

HK$10,000
#110,0007C

HK$20,000,000
#20,000,0007T

B 2 =]

TR ABH201
a

Effective
interest
held (%)

s
BRER
(BoH)

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiRBE(ZER)ERA T

6F3A3THMEBHEA

Principal activities

Investment holding

REER

Trading of brassieres and
panties, and functional
sports products

EENE RAEAR
MBS EER

Trading of bra pads and
other molded products
BB R EMEEER

Manufacturing of
brassieres and panties,
and functional sports
products

HERDE R R
MBS RER

Provision of sales agency
and information
technology services

REHERERES
BT AR

Manufacturing of bra
pads and other molded
products

HERTN R EMERER
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FEMBRRMEE

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited
BY P ER (8E) AR AR

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited
BY PR (R AR AR

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited Co., Ltd

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited Co., Ltd

Regina Miracle International Hai
Duong Co., Ltd

Regina Miracle International Hai
Duong Co., Ltd

Regina Miracle International
Group (Suzhou) Limited
HLIREIREE (B BR AR

Regina Miracle International
Group (Suzhou) Limited
HLIREIREE (B BR AR

Regina Miracle International
Group (Suzhou) Limited
HLIREIREE (B BR AR

Regina Miracle Management
Limited
HYREEARAT

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
HEMR LR
EEERER

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RERTHE -
BREFEATA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B BREERAA

Vietnam, limited
liability company
M BREELH

Vietnam, limited liability
company
M BREELH

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RERIHE -
BREFEATA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
EH BRERERAA

The PRC, limited
liability company
FE - BREEAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B BREFAR

12

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BRITRAR
BRA AR

us$2
2%ETL

HK$10,000

#1#10,0007T

US$143,036,626
143,036,626 7T

US$1,840,469
1,840,469 7T

HK$1
BT

HK$1

BEIT

HK$37,400,000
78 6:37,400,0007T

HK$1
BT

FER%E2015/16 ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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Effective
interest
held (%)
Fris
ERER
(B2k)
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Manufacturing of
brassieres and panties
EEMERAE

Manufacturing of sports
footwear

KEEYE

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Manufacturing of
brassieres and panties
EEMERAE

Investment holding
REER
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FEMBRRMEE

13

110

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year ended 31 March 2016. One of the Hong Kong
subsidiaries was subject to Hong Kong profits tax at a rate
of 8.25% in respect of its profits derived from the contract
processing arrangement during the year ended 31 March
2015. The contract processing arrangement ceased during
the year ended 31 March 2015 which resulted in its loss of
the preferential profits tax rate of 8.25% and an increase in
the profits tax rate from 8.25% to 16.5% thereafter.

The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
is 25% (2015: 25%) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietnam were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 22% (2015:
22%). In accordance with the applicable tax regulations,
the subsidiaries are subject to a lower tax rate of 10% for
fifteen consecutive years, commencing from the first year
of making revenue. In addition, the subsidiaries are entitled
to full exemption from corporate income tax for the first four
years from the earlier of (i) the year when profit is generated
for the first time or (ii) the fourth year of making revenue;
and a 50% reduction in corporate income tax for the next
nine years. The Vietnam subsidiaries of the Group do not
have any taxable profit for the year ended 31 March 2016
(2015: Nil).

The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the
consolidated income statement represents:

13 SRR

HZE2016F3A31HILFE - fhatfER
FaEMEIZ16.5% (20154  16.5%)
MBERFRESFNCGHEE  -&HE
2015%F3A31BILEFE - —fABEWE
NEBRERE N T HE TR
1#28.25% MR R M BB FEH - fn
T L HENEE2016F3A8318 1L
EESKRILE  EFIBAEERNGHRE
8.25% 1M EL1& K 15T K Rl| 1 8.25% 1%
HZE16.5% °

HZE2016F3A3THILFE » £&H
R EIfB A AR E R R &225% (2015
F 0 25%) o

PR ELHH B AR AE22%
(20154F : 22% ) OB R BN ZEFTIS
Fio RIBEBAREER  ZHEBAGE
BERFMEFREETAFREEMRE
10%E8F: - thoh - B () EEERBUA
BERELRANENE(EEREE
AE)VETENFENRN - ZHBAREHE
EHBRCHMEEMSER  WHREE
NERZEHFE0%EAMERBE - &
2016F3A31HIEFE - AEBEMW
BB A R BT ] FE AR A5 A1 (2015
FrET)e

EREA WS ERPIR,(GTA) BF
THSREWT

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Current income tax BUERFRISBE
— Hong Kong profits tax —BEFEH 68,451 59,264
- PRC enterprise income tax — R EMEH 46,519 23,678
Deferred income tax (Note 28) EIEFTS R (M 5E28) 6,668 (567)
Income tax expense Fris it sz 121,638 82,375
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13 FISRAXZ @)
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs 7N E2 B B BT 15 F5% A i F 89 77 78 B R AR
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the EAREBR QTR INE TR X
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the group SHERSENEENT

companies as follows:

2016 2015
20164 2015%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before income tax ey Il 563,692 420,181
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate RERRBE AR R
applicable to profits in respective 355 ) B9 B ;R =R
jurisdictions STEFIE 117,808 76,441
Tax effects of: MG E
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (954) (282)
Expenses not deductible for taxation IRtz olaba
purpose 4,779 6,213
Others EHh 5 3
Income tax expense s> 121,638 82,375
The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year ended HE2016F3A31HIEFE « MNEFH
31 March 2016 was 20.9% (2015: 18.2%). AT EA20.9% (20154 :18.2%) °
The increase was mainly due to cessation of the contract ZABEEHN —KWBAFTAMI
processing arrangement of a subsidiary in July 2014 which WL HEN201457 AR - BHIEL
resulted in a loss of the preferential profits tax rate of 8.25% BEMEH L8.25% ML &K FIEH
and an increase in the profits tax rate from 8.25% to 16.5% RAIHB.25%ILINE16.5% °
thereafter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 BRER

(a) Basic (a) B
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit FRERBIIGANATES AER
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted TR AR BT E BIRIIRE I EGTE -

average number of ordinary shares in issue.

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FEEETIT
Profit attributable to owners of /NI PNl
the Company (HK$'000) (BT T) 442,054 337,806

Weighted average number of ordinary 277 @A IN#E
shares in issue ('000) FHE(FRR) 1,047,411 885,000

Basic earnings per share (expressed in B EARZEF

HK cents per share) (LAFREELEIIR) 42.2 38.2
Note: The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share fisE © o RIEE20164 M20159E3 A31H 1k
for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 were adjusted FENGRERNRBERTOE S E
retrospectively for the sub-division of ordinary shares from 100 BErEHBMAE - LAR2015F9A 118
shares to 10,000 shares taken place on 11 September 2015 (Note 3R A% B 100 HF 48 % 10,000% (Hi 5%
24); and the capitalisation issue of 884,990,000 shares taken place 24) : BFA2015F10 A8 H & AL 31T
on 8 October 2015 (Note 24). 884,990,000/ A% 15 (Ffi5t24) ©
(b) Diluted (b) #8
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March HE2016F K2016F3A31HIEF
2016 and 2015 are the same as the basic earnings per share B - BRI EBETEEEE TR
as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued. W REE RN SR TGREARRR]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 Y% MERRE

Office
Leasehold  Plant and furniture  Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery  andfixtures  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HAEAR
EE RENERE  HRRES EekE Bl RE  EBIE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ATr  EfTr BTt #fn #ETn 1 AT AETT
As at 1 April 2014 R014E4A1R
Cost i 24,629 784,236 728239 73,443 53,369 15,864 9506 1,689,286
Accumulated depreciation  E3#7E (6428) (23,063 (362,763) (60,721) (36,906) (11,091) - man
Net book amount FESE 18,201 549173 365,476 12,122 16,464 4713 9,506 976,315
Yearended 31 March 2015 BZ2015538318 LEE
Openingnethook amount ~~ EEESE 18,201 549,173 365,476 1272 16,464 4773 9,506 976,315
Additions HE - 16,471 23,665 2,385 8,596 2,207 167,392 220,716
Disposals it - - 79 - 27 - - (106
Transfer-in/lout &)\/1t) - 11,590 - - - - (1159 -
Depreciation i (1,644) (47,157) 63,025) (6,228) (7523 1.891) - 126,468)
Currency translation M RE
differences (125) (1,49) (1,207) (61) (107) (24) (16) (3,035)
Closing net book amount FREERHE 16,432 528582 324,830 9818 17403 5,068 166292 1067422
As at 31 March 2015 A201553A318
Cost A& 2,442 809,833 749,561 TodT1 61,637 18,020 165,292 1,904,262
Accumulated depreciation  E:ffrE (8010)  (81251)  (@24731) (65,659) (44,234 (12,955) - (836840
Net book amount SEEE 16,432 528582 324,830 9818 17403 5,065 166292 1067422
Year ended 31 March 2016 §Z201653831ALEE
Opening nethook amount ~~ FKEFE 16,432 528,582 324,830 9818 17,403 5,065 165292 1,067422
Additions hE - 2123 235,235 15,621 21,606 6,478 746803 1,053,366
Disposals k- - - (544) - (1) (4) - (559)
Transfer-inf{out) E)/(1k) 139,338 13,287 2,29 - - - (154921) -
Depreciation il (22m) (37.921) (74,008) (4,148) (11,803) (2:318) - (132,469)
Currency translation A EE
differences 1541 (7,145) 4,525) (251) (336) (139) 2,69 (8,160)
Closing net book amount EXERTE 155,040 524,926 483,284 21,040 26,859 9,082 759869 1,980,100
As at 31 March 2016 201653A318
Cost R 164,994 839,281 975,312 90,251 81,303 24,303 759869 2,935,373
Accumulated depreciation  Z:H17E (9954)  (314355)  (492,088) (69.211) (54,444) (15,221) - (955,273)
Net book amount FHEE 155,040 524,926 483,284 21,040 26,859 9,082 759,869 1,980,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% BMERRZRE®
(Continued)
Depreciation expense charged in consolidated income SFAGE NS ROITER T ¢

statement is as follows:

2016 2015
20164 2015%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Cost of sales HERA 109,327 104,032
General and administrative expenses — MR R ITE R 20,739 20,199
Research and development costs 9T R BB A AN 2,403 2,237
132,469 126,468
16 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 16 HEL#h R +ithfE AR
RIGHTS
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights AEENEE 0 N (5 AR
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net H(EMELEHEREREREF
book values are analysed as follows: B) DT -
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Opening net book amount FRmFEE 118,095 20,425
Additions INE 58,446 98,209
Amortisation (Note 9) BiH(fEE9) (2,709) (403)
Currency translation differences G Rl (3,813) (136)
Closing net book amount FREMEE 170,019 118,095
As at 31 March M3A31H
Cost AN 176,325 121,123
Accumulated amortisation ST (6,306) (3,028)
170,019 118,095
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is included HE TR+ AREEA ALRE
in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement. W aR R B SEE BN ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BEREE
Computer
software
B4
HK$'000
BT T
As at 1 April 2014 M20145F4H18
Cost BN 31,886
Accumulated amortisation RETHESH (4,997)
26,889
Year ended 31 March 2015 BZE2015F3A31BLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 26,889
Additions INE 13,884
Amortisation b o (4,530)
Currency translation differences SMNEIRE E EE (60)
Closing net book amount FAREmFE 36,183
As at 31 March 2015 7201553 H31H
Cost D% 45,708
Accumulated amortisation S £ic) (9,625)
36,183
Year ended 31 March 2016 BZ2016F3A31BLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 36,183
Additions NE 18,751
Amortisation 5 (8,509)
Currency translation differences HNEE S B 2 5R (340)
Closing net book amount FAREmIFE 46,085
As at 31 March 2016 1201653 H31H
Cost D% 64,031
Accumulated amortisation RETHESH (17,946)
46,085
Amortisation of intangible assets is included in general B EEBHETAGARFERN—RK
and administrative expenses in the consolidated income RITHHE -
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

18 AIftHEERMEE

AT ESREERRNATEE

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT

Unlisted: JEET :
— Debt securities — & E - 4,949
- Investment funds —REES - 3,885
— Insurance policy investments —(REKE 48,626 85,508
48,626 94,342

Movement of the available-for-sale financial assets is as
follows:

AHHESREEZBAT

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At beginning of the year REF] 94,342 91,225

Additions NE 7,664 15,833

Disposals HeE (54,541) (15,465)
Fair value gain recognised to other EEM SRS

comprehensive income N ERE 1,161 2,749

End of the year WER 48,626 94,342

Less: non-current portion B IERBIE S (48,626) (89,393)

Current portion mENE D = 4,949

As at 31 March 2015, the fair values of unlisted debt
securities and investment funds were determined by
reference to the banks’ quote or input from reputable
financial institutions. As at 31 March 2016 and 2015,
the carrying amounts of the unlisted insurance policy
investments represented the account value of the insurance
policy which approximates their fair values.

72015938318 @ EEMEBESFK
BEESHATFEDNKELERITIRE
MG BB ABERET - X
20164 % 2015F3 A31H - JEEMIR
BREEHENFERAENRENR
SEME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies:

e R BRRME

18 THHESHMEE @)

AHHESREENATIIERTIE

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

United States Dollar EViW 22,243 68,588
Hong Kong Dollar B 26,383 25,754
48,626 94,342

As at 31 March 2015, debt securities of approximately
HK$4,949,000, investment funds of approximately
HK$3,885,000 and insurance policy investments of
approximately HK$44,424,000 were secured for bank
borrowings (Note 26).

INVENTORIES

MN201543HA31H - EBBLELY
754,949,000 C HEE S HNE
# 3,885,000 7L X R E & & X B
44,424,000 7T Bt & BUER 17 & U VE 17
(FF5E26) -

19 FE

2016
20164

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Raw materials Enat 219,022 254,495
Work-in-progress ER 444,604 293,607
Finished goods SRR S 38,113 25,613

701,739 573,715

The cost of raw materials recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$1,827,479,000 (2015: HK$1,687,928,000) for the year
ended 31 March 2016.
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HZE2016F3A3MBILFE - BARA
7 2 WA A S B AN A R AR K AR 4
755 1,827,479,000 7T (20154 : B #
1,687,928,0007T) °

117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

20 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20 EFEWRFKREKREE
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEF T BT T
Trade and bills receivables B SRR N FE U E IR 570,391 430,716
The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables B 5 I W AR N N R W R R e BR T (B 2R
approximate their fair values. HRATFEEE -

(a)  The credit period granted by the Group is generally 30 to (@) AEEREHEBBH-KRRB30E120

120 days. H-
Trade and bills receivables, based on due date, were aged as B 5 MR S B R B AR IR L B
follows: HEIRF SRR T -
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT IT
Current BNER 467,789 328,783
1-30 days 12304 62,154 79,274
31-60 days 31260H 29,267 6,325
61-90 days 61H90H 3,149 8,545
Over 90 days HHiE90H 8,032 7,789
Amounts past due but not impaired B mREN ST 102,602 101,933
570,391 430,716
Amounts past due but not impaired relate to a number of B AE R EN S EE R e
independent customers for whom there is no recent history HRGEENBYREEEH -
of default.
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group does not hold any 20164 k20153 A31H « AEE
collateral as security. W AR AR RV ERER -
(b)  Asat 31 March 2016 and 2015, no trade and bills receivables (b) 20164 K%2015%3A310 » &g
were considered impaired and had been provided for. SEWR SRR EWRBRER AR EDSK
BVERHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(c) The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

e R BRRME

20 ESRWERRREVRERE

(#8)

(© B ZEMIREEKEIE IR E(E A
TIEEEHE

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$°000 HK$'000

BEET T BT T

United States Dollar E3 513,317 383,260
Hong Kong Dollar B 20,162 32,627
Renminbi AR 36,911 14,928
Euro BT 1 1
570,391 430,716

(d) As at 31 March 2016, included in Group's trade and bills
receivables were amounts due from related parties of
approximately HK$3,991,000 (2015: HK$20,256,000) (Note
34(c)).

(d) M2016%3A318 @ Bt AREBNE
5 EUIR U R I A e U B &
FIBH) BB %3,991,0007T (20164 -
751#20,256,0007T ) (MI7E34(c)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

21 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Be BENRERHEME
WK IE

21

2016
20164

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Non-current portion IERBIE D
Rental deposits HEZS 3,824 3,419
Prepayments for purchase of BEMXE  BERRER
property, plant and equipment | EEMTENRIA
and intangible asset 25,701 6,787
Prepayments for purchase of BEHELTME
leasehold land and land use rights + b {E AR TR B 50,490 4,013
80,015 14,219
Current portion mENEL Y
Rental, utilities and other deposits e ARFRELEMEZS 5,038 2,249
Deferred listing expenses RIE FRY = 2,545
Value-added tax recoverable AU BB T 21,903 8,832
Other prepayments EABIER A 9,370 6,111
Other receivables oAt FEMGRIE 2,696 725
39,007 20,462
Total deposits, prepayments and & - BRRIER
other receivables E b R ISR E 119,022 34,681

ReLEMEURFKENREERLR
FERE °

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

B BN FORREAMERFORL T
BREREEE -

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables do not contain
impaired assets.

RS RHAAENEXREERR A
EXRERNZERYGAENAFE -
AREE W EITH T EMRIERER

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above.
The Group does not hold collateral as security.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

21

e R BRRME

BE  FEANREREAME
W IE ()

BE REMEWKIRNREEL T
BHETE -

2016 2015

20164 2015%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Hong Kong Dollar B 3,364 3,336
Renminbi AREE 6,498 2,689
Vietnamese Dong HEE 1,696 368
11,558 6,393

AMOUNT DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 March 2015, the amount due from a shareholder
was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amount was denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The carrying amount of amount due from a shareholder
approximated its fair value. The amount due from a
shareholder was not impaired.

Amount due from a shareholder outstanding was
summarised as follows:

22

FEU — B R R FIE

MR2015F3A31H » B —RARERTE
BB - R ENBREREEE -

SRABEEHE - BR—BRRFA
MEREERE R FERE - BR—%
B ERFRIR L ERE o

8 Mt — 2 PR SRR 0 0K 5 R0
T

Maximum
Atthe outstanding
At the beginning during
end of year of year the year
FRES
RER REY  HREEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
2016 20165
Mr. Hung Yau Lit ity vtest - 500,740 680,000
2015 2015
Mr. Hung Yau Lit et 500,740 444,012 730,740

During the year ended 31 March 2016, a special dividend
of HK$680,000,000 was declared and settled through
offsetting the outstanding amount due from a shareholder
using the distributable reserves of the Company prior to the
listing of the Company.
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REZE2016F3A31BLFE - BRI
B %680,000,0007T % @ AN A A
AR ER AR B T AT 8 R IR
—ZREEAREETEERREHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

23 RERRESEBYURE

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

BRTER

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT

Cash at bank and on hand RITHRES RFERE 343,973 254,729
Bank deposits (Note (ii)) SRATF R (FIREG) 603,027 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEEHEY 947,000 254,729
Short-term bank deposits (Note (i)) RTHASRI TR AR (P EE()) = 12,495
947,000 267,224

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

RehBReFEMAREIRITFR
TS S EHE -

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000
AT IT

HK$'000
BT T

Renminbi (Note (iii) AR (B EEG) 55,878 86,611
Hong Kong Dollar B 767,822 127,986
United States Dollar ET 118,341 49,662
Vietnamese Dong (Note (iii)) e JE (M) 4,509 2,652
Euro B 450 408
Others Hib - 5

947,000 267,224

Notes: MRE -

(ii)

(iii)
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As at 31 March 2015, the effective interest rate per annum on
short-term bank deposits was 3.3%; short-term bank deposits have
maturities at inception ranging from over 3 months to 1 year.

As at 31 March 2016, the effective interest rate per annum on
bank deposits up to three months was 0.46%; bank deposits have
maturities at inception of less than 3 months.

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$55,248,000 (2015:
HK$77,858,000) are held in Mainland China as at 31 March 2016.
Cash and cash equivalents of HK$4,471,000 (2015: HK$2,552,000)
are held in Vietnam as at 31 March 2016. They are subject to
local exchange control regulations. Those local exchange control
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country, other than through normal dividends.

(i)

(i)

(iii)
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M20165F3A318  EHRITEANE
BREFRAE33%  LEBRTHEARE
AR EHEHBEIEAZI1FIE -

K20164%3A31H - E=3MEAMIRTT
FRERFNETRD0.46% « RITEFR
EARNEHARINEA -

& kB & EE Y ¥ 55,248,0007T
(20154 : ##77,858,0007T ) 722016
FIAZNBRFBEKRERE - BERR
S L EMAYEA471,0007T (20155 : 78
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SHARE CAPITAL

e R BRRME

24 R

2016 2015
2016% 20154
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares
ROEA BT ¥
Authorised: AETE -

Ordinary shares at US$0.01 SREE0.01FELA

(2015: US$1 each) iR (20155 -

BR1ET)
At beginning of the year REA 50,000 389 50,000 389
Share sub-division (Note (i) Bm A () 4,950,000 = - -
Increase in authorised shares (Note (il) 5 m% e (FiFE)  49,995,000,000 3,874,611 - -
At end of the year RER 50,000,000,000 3,875,000 50,000 389
Issued and fully paid: BERAR

Ordinary shares at US$0.01 FRAEMB.0IELA

(2015: US$1 each) LER (20155 -

BRIET)

At beginning of the year REA 100 1 100 1
Share sub-division (Note (i) R A (M) 9,900 - - -
Capitalisation of share premium R REER

(Note {ii)) (B 884,990,000 68,852 - -
Issuance of shares (Note (i) AR BAT (BisE (i) 339,250,000 26,394 - .
At end of the year REER 1,224,250,000 95,247 100 1

Notes: 3T -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholder on 11
September 2015, the Company sub-divided all its issued and unissued
shares with par value of US$1.00 each into 100 shares of US$0.01
each. Accordingly, the number of issued ordinary shares increased
from 100 shares to 10,000 shares. In addition, the Company increased
its authorised share capital from US$50,000 to US$500,000,000 by
the creation of an additional 49,995,000,000 shares.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholder on
11 September 2015, conditional upon Listing and subject to the
share premium account of the Company having sufficient balance or
otherwise being credited as a result of the issue of the offer shares by
the Company pursuant to the global offering in relation to the Listing,
the Company would capitalise an amount of US$8,849,900 standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company by applying
such sum to pay up in full at par a total of 884,990,000 shares for
allotment and issue to the persons whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company. On 8 October 2015, the shares
of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the aforementioned conditions were fulfilled.
Accordingly, the said amount was capitalised standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company by applying such sum to
pay up in full at par a total of 884,990,000 shares for allotment and issue
to the persons whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company.

The Company listed its shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
on 8 October 2015. In connection with the global offering completed
on 8 October 2015 and the exercise of the over-allotment option
completed on 14 October 2015 respectively, the Company issued a
total of 339,250,000 shares at a price of HK$5.60 per share for a total
proceeds (before related fees and expenses) of HK$1,899,800,000.
These new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects.
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(i)

(ii)

(i)

RIBFER2016F9A 11 HBEBNE
ERER  ARRBEFMETREE
1.003% T H) B 81T R oK B 4T AR 19 47 4B
2100 T EE0.01FE AR ©
It BT T B AR AR (D B 100 A4 N
Z10,000% ° AN - AR RIFEBIER
49,995,000,000 % f 17+ {57 ELA TE AR AR
F150,0003 7T /1 Z 500,000,000 T, ©

RIFERENL2016F9 A1 HRBNERE
REEE - FLEMBREBRMAR R
DEERAETNES  LRRERIK
BER LM ETHERNMMEGHER
KRR E AR R AR HER AR
8,849,900 TR - HEARERSE
B ERH I MBI A A RRRE MM
B9 A 1R T 8 il % K #£77884,990,000
BERSD - 2015410 A8H + AR FIRK
DRBEEH AT ER LT - M e
BREENK - At - ElSEBEARL
ARFRDEENER - FEAER
A BRI MNREERBIIAR
ARREMOATRERFTHEH
884,990,000/ f% 17

ANAFIR2015510 A8 B R BB T
ETERD - HRIER2015410A8H
TR EHREE RMR2016F10A 148 %
PRATIERBRERL AR - AN RIIRERRA
5.60 7T 217 A ££339,250,000 A% f% 15
FrissIEBE(NRABEER XM AT
7575 #1,899,800,0007T ° 3% FH A& D
RETE 7 EER A RN BEAREHAL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

25 RESERVES 25 f#E&

Available-

Statutory for-sale

Share surplus financial
premium reserve assets Exchange  Retained
(Note (i)  (Note (ii)) reserve reserve  earnings

EE T
RORE  BEBEE  HESHE
(R (M)  EERE  SERE  REERA At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT  BETT  BTR BT B¥Tr  B%TR

As at 1 April 2014 201454 A1A 510,725 17,747 2,094 70,347 426,464 1,027,377
Profit for the year FEHF - - - - 337,806 337,806
Currency translation differences INEBREER - - - (5,824) - (5,824)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AtEESREE

financial assets N - - 2,749 - - 2,749
Reclassification adjustment upon EnnEt

assignment and disposal of HECREER

available-for-sale financial assets ENHBRE - - (825) - - (825)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTLTRE - 5771 - - (5,771) -
Dividends (Note 31) BRE (zE31) {100,000) - - - (130,000  (230,000)
As at 31 March 2015 1201563 A31A 410,725 23518 4,018 64,523 628,499 1,131,283
As at 1 April 2015 1201554 A1A 410,725 23,518 4,018 64,523 628,499 1,131,283
Profit for the year FEHF = - - - 442,054 442,054
Currency translation differences INERE = - - - (25,332) - (25,332)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale At EESREEATE

financial assets Wiz - - 1,161 - - 1,161
Reclassification adjustment upon EEp PanH

assignment and disposal of HESREER

available-for-sale financial assets Ebip o - - (3,430) - - (3,430)
Capitalisation of share premium R REER

(Note 24 ii)) (PFE240) (68,852) - = = - (68,852)
Issuance of shares (Note 24 (i) g7 (RizE24(i) 1,873,406 - - - - 1,873,406
Share issuance cost BTN (98,585) - - - - (98,585)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTLTRE - 14,133 - - (14,133) -
Dividends (Note 31) BRe (zE31) (410,725) - = - (269,275)  (680,000)
As at 31 March 2016 1201653531A 1,705,969 37,651 1,749 39,191 787,145 2,571,705
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Share premium

As at 31 March 2015, share premium of the Company represents
the difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation on 30 June 2011
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof.

Share issuance cost mainly included underwriting commission,
lawyer's fees, reporting accountant’s fee and other related costs.
Incremental costs that were directly attributable to the issue of the
new ordinary shares amounting to HK$98,585,000 was treated as
a deduction from share premium.

Statutory surplus reserve

The balance mainly represents statutory surplus reserve. In
accordance with articles of association of certain subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of the profit after taxation prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting standards to the statutory reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered share capital. Such reserve can be
used to reduce any losses incurred and to increase share capital.

BORROWINGS

e R BRRME

25 @B

Bt

(U]

(ii)

B3R E

R2016F3A31H  AARIKIRMDEE
FEARER2011F6 A0 EITHEE S
4B T L P B A B AR PR AN BRI A A
BRI TRD IR AEEESE

RDEITRAEZRIERHAS - 260
- RS TANE A REMARRARA -
75 1£98,585,000 T M) B B R BN BT
T IRAR RS FOFTIE R AN AR A 2R B AR (D
S (B HOHRL ©

EEBBRHE
ERTBRIDEFRHEE - RENTE
AEMASZ A E T I A R A =72 40
Al MBARERRETEEEAR
B BBIRETN0%EREETE HE -
BEEHERLMRANS0% RLE - %R
8 R] RER MR PR E A B HE sk A
HEHORRA

26 &3k

2016
20164

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Bank borrowings RITER
Non-current IERB 396,852 555,289
Current e 720,512 685,013
1,117,364 1,240,302
Borrowings are analysed as follows: EHOmnT :

2016
20164

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT

HK$'000
BT T

Non-current FERE)
Portion of term loans due for P E2F R HREER

repayment between EHERHB D

1 and 2 years 321,956 341,845
Portion of term loans due for R2E5F R HAEIRR

repayment between EHERE D

2 and 5 years 74,896 213,444

396,852 555,289
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26
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BORROWINGS (Continued)

26 ER@

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Current JEE)

Portion of term loans due for M FERBEENTHERTS
repayment within 1 year 239,823 195,409
Short-term bank loans REERIRITE R 480,689 489,604
720,512 685,013
Total bank borrowings RITEFRAERT 1,117,364 1,240,302

As at 31 March 2015, bank borrowings are secured
by (i) debt securities of approximately HK$4,949,000;
(ii) investment funds of approximately HK$3,885,000;
(iii) insurance policy investments of approximately
HK$44,424,000 (Note 18); (iv) personal guarantees provided
by Mr. Hung Yau Lit, a director and shareholder of the
Company; (v) corporate guarantees provided by related
companies and group companies; and (vi) properties
held by a related company with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$248,000,000.

On 8 October 2015, the personal guarantees provided by
Mr. Hung Yau Lit, corporate guarantees provided by related
companies and the pledge of properties held by a related
company were released by the respective banks upon the
Listing.

As at 31 March 2016, bank borrowings are secured by
corporate guarantees given by the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2016, total undrawn bank facilities
amounted to approximately HK$1,940,110,000 (2015:
HK$1,770,008,000).

7201643 A31 8 » BITEZHANET
BAELEMEL,949,0007T ¢ (i)IREHS
#)75%3,885,0007T ; (iR EZELE
#544,424,0007C(FFFE18) (VAR A]
—REBEERRELE L RN
AER: RvEBEQAG REEAQ T
REMSERER  kv)i—HBHEEA
A)F B )3 4858 4978 % 248,000,0007T
TEHEIR o

M2015F 10488 « HlFE L AR
BAER - BHEQRHEEMDEE
RE—EBEBEARFEYERER
RS ERITHR -

R2016F3A31H  IRITEREARA
EARBIETHEBATHEHAOMEE
IRIEIEIR -

R2016FE3A31H » RIEBURTTEE
{EEE L) A 78 %51,940,110,000 7T (2015
£F : 78¥1,770,008,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated

in the following currencies:

e R BRRME

26 B

TEFRHERERIA TERE

2016
20164

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Hong Kong Dollar B 566,672 908,713
United States Dollar EViW 550,692 331,589
1,117,364 1,240,302

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's borrowings bore floating
rates and the effective interest rates per annum of bank

borrowings were 2.5% (2015: 2.8%)).

27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Assets
Foreign exchange forward
contracts (Note (i)

BE
SRR H 2 49 (HIEE)

M201643A31H » "EBENE UL
IRITIEFFEFERBRFF|E25%
(2015%F : 2.8%):t 2 °

27 TTAEERMIA

2016
20164

2015
20154
HK$'000

/am:FTE

HK$'000
BT T

Interest rate swap contracts (Note (i) FI=i=EI& 49 (B () = 1,340
Shareholder indemnification in EREINERBASNEE R
relation to the settlement A% B A (& (B R Gn)
losses of foreign exchange
forward contracts (Note (ii)) 4,732 -
4,732 1,341
Liabilities BlE
Foreign exchange forward HNE IR BRE 40 (BEEG))
contracts (Note (i) 8,969 90,832
Interest rate swap contracts (Note (i)  FI=i=EI& 49 (BHEE() - 7,633
8,969 98,465
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27 TEE®I A
(Continued)
Notes: BiE

(i) The derivative financial instruments mainly consist of the following (i)
contracts:

Foreign exchange forward contracts in A FR# 3 ZE T HISNER BIA 47
respect of RMB against USD
— Notional principal amounts —BEADTE

— Maturities as at year end —HEFKRIEBAAE

Interest rate swap contracts in respect — #R7T/AIEFEHEE K

of fixed interest rate and floating JEEFIE A
interest rate of HIBOR

— Notional principal amounts —GEASHE

— Maturities as at year end —HEFREEA

Derivative financial instruments are carried at fair values.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the director and the (i)

controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr. Hung Yau Lit, agreed
and confirmed to indemnify the Group for any losses that the
Group may suffer from settlements of foregoing outstanding
foreign exchange forward contracts with the banks on or after
1 April 2015 in excess of the amount of HK$90,800,000. For
the year ended 31 March 2016, a fair value gain on the related
shareholder indemnification of HK$4,732,000 was recognised in
the consolidated income statement (2015: Nil) (Note 8).

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiRBE(ZER)ERA T

TTESBMTAIZERIEUTEL

2016 2015
20164 20154

US$4,500,000 US$34,500,000
4,500,000% 7T 34,500,0003 7T

7 months, Range from
subject to 7 months to
certain 19 months,
conditions subject to certain
78R - conditions
REET NFIMEAZE
R E 1918 AT -
REETF
G E

- HK$520,000,000
7 1520,000,0007T

- Range from
1 month to

11 months

N F1EAZE
1MERATE

THEERMTEERITEAR -

REZ2016F3A31ALLFE - AAF]
EERERIERMSE L AR B HER
BEAEE R ELBERRITAI S WA
HAROME R A 494 2015F4 A1 H 3k
2 1% B3B7E 190,800,000 LR TR 1Y
A EEE - REE201663A31H
IEFE - HERREEEEN A FEK
#7515 4,732,00070 B R AR A IS R T
R(20154F « M) (MI5F8) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 28 EIEFTER
The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities is as RSB EEsnT ¢
follows:

2016 2015
20164 2015%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At beginning of the year REF) (3,555) (4,122)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated  (Rir&lzmzRING),~
income statement (Note 13) T ALRE W= (FEE13) (6,668) 567
At end of the year RER (10,223) (3,555)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when BREFRGHREERBERFEEEA
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets SEHERATREFI DA B BRR TE A E I AH D
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income HRIEBERBRLEMEHR S RE—
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following BRS8N o« LU T 2R EE K
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown HIZETE - BT EEEARER

in the consolidated balance sheet:

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Deferred tax assets BRI IR E E = 597
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE (10,223) (4,152)
(10,223) (3,555)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be settled BEEMSHEERBENRBR12(EA

after more than 12 months. BB o
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28

130

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 28 ELEFTEBL)
The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and REFRNERELEFMSEHEERBGEHARE
liabilities during the years without taking into consideration MEE (W AEBRRE YW ALEER
of the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction NGRS IT -

are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities: EIEFTBHREAE :

Accelerated tax
depreciation

EBHIETE

HK$'000

BT

As at 1 April 2014 MR2014F4/18 24,247
Credited to the consolidated income statement FTAGRE WS R (4,666)
As at 31 March 2015 7201593 A31H 19,581
As at 1 April 2015 R2015%F4H1H 19,581
Credited to the consolidated income statement FFAERE R (6,628)
As at 31 March 2016 #H201643H31H 12,953

Deferred income tax assets: EEFIEHEE :

Net fair value

Net fair value losses on
losses on financial
derivative assets at fair
financial value through

instruments profit or loss Tax losses
BAFE
PTESR s AEEN
ITENAYE cREE
BRFE AVEBRFHE IR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT IT BT T
As at 1 April 2014 M2014%F4H1H 17,574 2,551 - 20,125
Charged to REFE =R
consolidated Mk
income statement (1,548) (2,551) - (4,099)
As at 31 March 2015 7201543 H31H 16,026 - - 16,026
As at 1 April 2015 720154 31H 16,026 - - 16,026

(Charged)/credited (RiRB xR
to the consolidated HR) 5

income statement LEWER (15,327) - 2,031 (13,296)
As at 31 March 2016  A20165%3A31H 699 - 2,031 2,730

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiRBE(ZER)ERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

As at 31 March 2016, the Group does not have any material
unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
(2015: Nil).

As at 31 March 2016, deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$14,067,000 (2015: HK$7,273,000) have
not been established for the withholding taxation that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
in the PRC of approximately HK$281,342,000 (2015:
HK$145,463,000), as the directors considered that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences
can be controlled and the related temporary difference will
not be reversed and will not be taxable in the foreseeable
future.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables, based on invoice date, were aged as
follows:

28

29

e R BRRME

ELEMRBH @

M2016F3A318 » AEB W EIAE
AR BEEENABRERNELEHREE
E(2015%F : &) -

HREERABREABEREEZRN
BFREA PG RAAEEREERE
FERA R RBELO W NSHER -
MMR2016F3 A31H  EBEMEFH
B B4 8% 14,067,000 7T (20154 ¢
7 1 7,273,000 7T ) I & Bt A B BT B
A AR E &R E A TR IE A8
& 281,342,000 7t ( 2015 & : & ¥&
145,463,0007T) °

B 5 ENIRMR

B 50 B SR B R E AR
T

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT

0-30 days 0%&30H 115,357 141,538
31-60 days 31E60H 77,767 112,439
61-90 days 61Z=90H 67,037 92,711
Over 90 days HRiE90H 673 9,900
260,834 356,588

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in
the following currencies:

B o RNERNREEA T EEG
':

2016 AOKES
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Hong Kong Dollar B 70,830 105,926
United States Dollar ETT 153,715 176,686
Renminbi AR 32,511 71,182
Euro BT 2,457 2,629
Others Hi 1,321 165
260,834 356,588

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their B O RNRFMEEERE QA TEMN

fair values. & e
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e RBRRME

30 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 30

Accruals for wages, salaries, T %% BEIwMNKE

St E AR BN RIE

2016
20164

HK$'000
BT T

2015

20154
HK$'000

BT

staff welfare and other related costs Hi KA ESE A 164,347 126,901
Payable for factory rent T & FE T 308 13,551 14,653
Payable for utilities A ARG R 508 7,675 7,947
Payable for purchase of property, HBEYE  BEMERE

plant and equipment FERIFRIR 74,016 9,263
Payable for purchase of BEREERMNKIE

intangible assets 1,047 3,456
Payable for construction in progress ERTIRENRIE 129,179 43,428
Payable for purchase of leasehold land & Z & + 3t [ + 3 F 4

and land use right FEftFRIE 45,801 14,791
Other payables HAb e FIE 32,202 21,322

467,818 241,761

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

FERT B R K ELA R A BOR M BREE IR

AT EMEHE -

2016 2015

20165 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Hong Kong Dollar it 24,829 17,570
Renminbi AR 196,811 164,494
United States Dollar ETT 44,202 1,391
Vietnamese Dong g 201,976 58,306
467,818 241,761

The carrying amounts of other payables approximate their
fair values.

of it

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

31 DIVIDENDS 31 RE

2016
20164

2015
20154
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Final dividend, proposed, of HK5.6 cents  #:% K HA B B A E A%

per ordinary share (Note (i)) 5.6/ (FEEG) 68,558 -
Dividends declared by the Company KARMEZRESRFEA
to its then equity holder (Note (ii)) IR AIA% E (B RE ) 680,000 230,000

Notes:

0]

(ii)

At a meeting held on 30 June 2016, a final dividend of HK5.6
cents per ordinary share of the Company, totalling approximately
HK$68,558,000 for the year ended 31 March 2016 is to be
proposed. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable in these consolidated financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation for the year ending 31 March 2017.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholder
on 11 September 2015, a special dividend of HK$680,000,000
was declared and settled against outstanding amount due from a
shareholder using the distributable reserves of the Company prior
to its listing during the year ended 31 March 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, a dividend of HK$2,300,000
per ordinary share was declared on 31 March 2015 and was offset
against the amount due from a shareholder.

Mo

(i)

R2016F6A30H AMMEE L - B3
IR BIZE20165F3A31 B IEFERKE
IR EARR R EGRY BARS.6/5 - A H
#9765 % 68,558,0007T ° M IBEZER B
W R BRI % E 4R A IS TR B RET PR
B R AHEZ201743A3181E
FENHE

RIBERER2016F9 A RRBHNER
REZE - REE2016F3A31HIEFE
A+ B K R A% S % 680,000,000 7T
WH E AT R ARA R A DR E
R —BREHAREERE -

REZE2006563A318LEE - B
2015F3A31 HE IR TR L RmAREE
2,300,000 7T HI A% 8.+ 3f B8 i U — & %
FRIAE
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32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 32 REEKMBRE
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash (a) BATEFATEEQCLEREIES
generated from operations: FEEREER
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before income tax B 1S B B E 563,692 420,181
Adjustments for: T
Amortisation of leasehold land THE A4 Je {5 4
and land use rights e 2,709 403
Amortisation of intangible assets L E 8,509 4,530
Depreciation of property, ¥ - BERERERTE
plant and equipment 132,469 126,468
Loss on disposal of property, HEE - BER
plant and equipment R fEE 559 76
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEESHEE
financial assets Wz (3,743) -
Gains on derivative PTEEm T Ak
financial instruments (473) (3,156)
Gain on financial assets at RAFEFABZER
fair value through profit or loss SREEEWE - (910)
Finance income BRI (3,547) (1,423)
Finance costs B FS AR 44,525 52,119
744,700 598,288
Changes in working capital: LIiBESEE)
Inventories FE (136,224) (18,577)
Trade and bills receivables B SRR R BRI (141,475) 40,456
Deposits, prepayments and e BIIHRIER
other receivables HoAth E U RIE (18,950) (2,492)
Trade payables Z BEMRR (95,754) 45,614
Accruals and other payables fEEHE R R E A ES R 46,952 57,149
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEF ABRR
through profit or loss SEEE - 25,055
Cash generated from operations BEEBRERS 399,249 745,493
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32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(Continued)

(b) In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

e R BRRME

32 REEBFBREW

(b) RZeReREXR HEVE BE
RABHIPTIS SRS THIAEMK

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Net book amount RESFE 559 106
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -« BEMEE

plant and equipment &g (559) (76)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant &% « BE &G

and equipment FTfS 5/IE = 30

(c) Significant non-cash transaction
During the year ended 31 March 2016, a dividend of
HK$680,000,000 (2015: HK$230,000,000) was declared and
offset against amount due from a shareholder (Note 22).

33 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

(c) EXFRERS
MNEZE20165E3A31H LFE - SR
B8 %680,000,0007T (20154 : /B
230,000,0007T ) + 37 £3 fE U — B AR 3R
FIBIEE (FE22) -

33 AiE

(a) EAREE

2016 AONNS)
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT

Contracted but not provided for BETABI R VERE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MERE 203,984 82,853
Leasehold land and land use rights FAE 0 K 0 AR 57,202 35,469
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e RBRRME

33 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of land and buildings
as follows:

33

(b)

FRIE ()

REHERE
AEEB L REFHOTAIHELE
HEBRRSEHRENFQETEMNT

2016 2015

20164 2015%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Not later than one year THEB—F 71,835 79,088
Later than one year and not later than BA—FETEARTF

five years 94,030 143,827

Later than five years HBiRaF - 14,691

165,865 237,606

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited (incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands) owns 58% of the Company's
shares as at 31 March 2016 and is wholly owned and
controlled by Mr. Hung Yau Lit. In addition, Mr. Hung Yau Lit
directly holds 15% of the Company’s shares as at 31 March
2016. The remaining shares are widely held. The ultimate
controlling party of the Group is Mr. Hung Yau Lit. As at 31
March 2015, the Group was controlled by Mr. Hung Yau
Lit, who owned 100% of the Company’s shares prior to the
Listing, who is also a common controlling shareholder and
director of the following related companies.

136

34

BELRS

M— BN EERREEREN S 7
K Z—IHEM B REERKER
EXFEN  AETHARELREH
o WMETRARMEFRAARZEKR
FEN AESTMEERBRE -

#2016 3 A31 H * Regent Marvel
Investment Holdings Limited (72 2L &
BRABEEFMAL) BB AR F58%
& - WEEBELEZERES RIE
#l o BEHh - 201653 A31H + MR
SEBE/RBERRAIS% KRN o 5T
A EZTATRE « NQRIHEE
{75 R o - TR20155F 3 A 31
B - AN E gk S A (B =TT Al
FHERARZIIRMD TS - AT
BRAEARNHEIERBRRIRES -
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FEMBRRMEE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34 BERXS @)

(a)

Name of related parties

RET B

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited

LRESH(FB)BERAA

Le Ying Apparel (Shenzhen) Limited

LREPRET ORI BRRE]

Le Ying Apparel (Beijing) Limited

SRRMHIER)BRAT]

Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory
(Shenzhen) Limited

AR EEFEBEORY) AR AT

Regent Marvel International Limited

Regent Marvel International Limited

Relationship with the Company
BN FIRH

Common controlling shareholder and director
HEZFBRBRRRES
Common controlling shareholder and director
HEZFBRBRRRES
Common controlling shareholder and director
HEZFBRBRRRES
Common controlling shareholder and director

HEZFBRBRRRES
Common controlling shareholder and director
HEZFBRBRRRES

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial (a) MEFBHBHREEMEEHAFESI
statements, the Group has the following transactions with REEHEETET IR S ¢

related parties:

Sales of goods to related parties

- Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited
(Note (i)

— Le Ying Apparel (Shenzhen) Limited
(Note (i)

— Le Ying Apparel (Beijing) Limited
(Note (i)

2016

2016

HK$°000

BT T

HEEMTHES

-2RRE5(FE)

BRAR (HEEI) 12,439
-2 R AR CRIN)

BRAR (HEEI) 1,588
LR MR (IER)

BERAE () =

2015
20154

HK$'000
BETT

39,427

4,286

1,205

Royalty income from
related companies

— Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited
(Note (i)

KEBRERRH
ERRERA
HEEH(FER)
AR F (HEEI) 195
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FEMBRRMEE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34 BEARZ @)
(a) Inaddition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial (a) BETBRREMESHHABEESEI -

statements, the Group has the following transactions with NEFEEERETNIRS - (58)

138

related parties: (Continued)

2016
20165

HK$'000

BET T

Interest expense paid MEE R R
to a related party FERZ
— Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory — 4T 21z E BiRE
(Shenzhen) Limited (Note (i) CRYDBRAT
(BEE (i) - 951
Utilities expense paid m—&BEET A
to a related party R
— Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory — 4212 & BifE
(Shenzhen) Limited (Note (iii)) CRYDBRAT]
(B (i) 1,017 7,019
Assignment of insurance policy investments to BE:E{REILE FRIET
related parties
— Mr. Hung Yau Lit (Note (iv)) — I S A (MFRE (V) 19,297 -
— Regent Marvel International Limited — Regent Marvel
(Note (iv)) International Limited
(BFFE(v)) 25,526 —

Notes: B EE

(i) The pricing of these transactions was determined based on mutual (i) IR 5 HE B IR A E HEE S R
negotiation and agreement between the Group and the related BRI R IBEET ©
parties.

(ii) Interest expense was related to a balance due to Red Star Shun (ii) FRF X BETALE (2 2 s ORYI)
Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory (Shenzhen) Limited, which was BRAFRMERER - REFE 20154
interest-bearing at 3.08% during the year ended 31 March 2015. 3A31BIEFE&R3.08% B ° it th
The balance was fully settled during the year ended 31 March REZE2015F3A31 B IEFEEBELS
2015. fif e

(i) The utilities expense was determined based on terms mutually (i) ARRBEZDIRY RS HFELRE
agreed between parties involved. This transaction was discontinued WGERMETE - kR SHER EHEK
upon Listing. 1k

(ivy  On 1 August 2015, insurance policy investments of the Group, (iv) 20154 8A1H  REENAEE

which were recognised as available-for-sale financial assets,
with carrying values of approximately HK$19,297,000 and
HK$25,526,000 as at the date of transfer were assigned to Mr.
Hung Yau Lit and Regent Marvel International Limited, respectively.
The transfer prices were equal to the carrying values as at the date
of transfer and were mutually agreed between parties involved.
The fair value gains of the insurance policy investments previously
recognised in available-for-sale financial assets reserve of
approximately HK$3,743,000 were taken to the profit or loss upon
the assignment for the year ended 31 March 2016.

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiRBE(ZER)ERA T

19,297,000 T & 7% # 25,526,000 7T &)
AARRERE(WERATHRLEES
MEE)REEAEDRIEEE L
i %t 4 K& Regent Marvel International
Limited - #EEERSHREZHBOER
HE  WHPREFHEERE © B
BRARAIHLESRMEERBENBE
3,743,000 LK) (R B & B A FE Wz
EREZE2016F3A31HILFERNE R
BEF B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34 BERXS @)

(b) Key management compensation (b) EEEEAEFMH
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T& & - LA KERL 29,605 26,666
Retirement benefits costs — defined IRRBFIBN R — EREALR
contribution scheme Bl 384 323
29,989 26,989
(c) Year-end balances with related parties (c) EHERE R KVFREER
2016 AONES)
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T T
Name of related parties BaiE A s
Trade receivables: SRR
— Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited -RRE5(BE)ERAT
(Note) ) 3,944 20,204
— Le Ying Apparel (Shenzhen) Limited ~LRRECRY)BRAF
(Note) (Ff7%) 47 52
3,991 20,256
Note: Mgk
The trade receivables due from related parties are unsecured, interest- BREEFNESHEBERRERR 28R
free and with credit terms of 60 to 90 days. EEH#IA60290H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 3B ANAEEEERRHEE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY =)

Balance sheet of the Company AAREEAER

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2016 AONES)
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BEET T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset REBEE
Interest in a subsidiary R—EMB AR AR 510,724 510,724
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FEU— M A RIRIR 1,349,358 390,364
Cash and cash equivalents HERIESEEY 15,709 -
1,365,067 390,364
Total assets EEARE 1,875,791 901,088
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to the owners 72 F)#H A B
of the Company
Share capital %N 95,247 1
Reserves ] (a) 1,777,134 514,089
Total equity EEAS 1,872,381 514,090
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a shareholder FER— B AR R FOE - 386,998
Accruals and other payables FERTE B L E AT 308 3,195 -
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIS B E 215 -
3,410 386,998
Total liabilities BEHAE 3,410 386,998
Total equity and liabilities ERkaEEH 1,875,791 901,088
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 3B ANTEEEBREHFEE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) BE) )

(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a)

RATRERE

Share
premium
(Note)

B RE)
HK$'000
BT

Retained
earnings
REEF
HK$'000
BT

Total
#ct
HK$'000
BT

As at 31 March 2014 A2014%€3831H 510,725 3,408 514,133
Profit for the year F N - 229,956 229,956
Dividends (Note 31) i 8 (MI3E31) (100,000) (130,000) (230,000)
As at 31 March 2015 7A201563H31H 410,725 103,364 514,089
Profit for the year FAmF - 237,076 237,076
Capitalisation of share premium DB E AL,

(Note 24 (i) (BF7E24 (i) (68,852) - (68,852)
Issuance of shares &84T

(Note 24 {(iii)) (B 5E24 (iii)) 1,873,406 - 1,873,406
Share issuance costs A& BT TR AR

(Note 25 (i)) (B3E25 (i) (98,585) - (98,585)
Dividends (Note 31) f&% B (FIaE31) (410,725) (269,275) (680,000)
As at 31 March 2016 201653 H31H 1,705,969 71,165 1,777,134

Note: B & -
Share premium of the Company represents the difference between
the cost of investment in the subsidiary acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 30 June 2011 over the nominal value of the share capital
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

AN ARG R (EERIER2011F6 A30 A #1T
K 52 B 5 48 1 R AR T /B8 2 Rl VIR B R AN B AR
RIVERSIRRTET 2 IR A (B R £ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36 EEFTZRER(KERE
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION N EMEDI (£622EF ) 55383
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES > RRI(BEEENHE
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622) AND COMPANIES BEGI(5£622GE ) RES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT FHRAEEER)
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executives HE2016F3A3IH I FEEREE R
for the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out below: SERITERA B ENE ST

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

RREALREEZE(TRARLATANE L AR CASERME

Employer's
contribution
to
Discretionary Housing  retirement
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes Total
EEE(K
£33 ik & META EEEZH EE L b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors HiTER
Hung Yau Lit HRE

(also known as YY Hung) (X&)

(Chief Executive Officer ) (BREHE) - 8,680 700 - 54 9,434
Yiu Kar Chun Antony (Note () #kE&8 (Fi3x()) - 2,008 200 - 28 2,236
Sze Shui Ling (Note (i) HERERR (BifEEG) = 1,542 150 = 28 1,720
Liu Zhengjang (Note (i) BIZ 8 (MizE) - 2,002 200 - 29 2,231
Chen Zhiping (Note (i)} BT (BitsEi) = 1,555 150 = 29 1,734
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive directors
Or Ching Fai (Note (i) R (H3EG0) 211 = = = = 211
Tam Lai Man (Note (i) EES R 177 - = = = 177
To Wong Wing Yue Annie EER GIGE)

(Note {ii)) 177 - - - - 177

565 15,787 1,400 - 168 17,920

Notes: S

(i) Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony, Ms. Sze Shui Ling, Mr. Liu Zhengiang (i) kSR A - MEIRISA L - BIERAL
and Mr. Chen Zhiping were appointed as executive directors EREFAEREXERATES B
effective from 22 June 2015. They were also employees of the 2016F6H22A 4N - HEMAREER
Group and the Group paid employees emoluments to them in their BE  MAKERBEERZEAWITE
capacity as employees before their appointments as executive EHIREENRBERAESEL RSN
directors. &

(ii) Dr. Or Ching Fai, Ms. Tam Lai Man and Mrs. To Wong were (ii) FEBLA BENXZTRBTE TR
appointed as independent non-executive directors effective from ZERBIIEWMITESF + 52015998
11 September 2015. TTHAER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36 EE=FIXRER(kKiEEH
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION NSER (E622 ) =383
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES B Ae(BBESARE
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622) AND COMPANIES B1) 18 5| (622G E ) R & B
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT THEBEESER) @

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executives
for the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:

BE2016F3A3HLFESREER
BARITRA BRI T -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
BRATEEER(TRARRRNENBAREGE)E Nl E
Employer’s
contribution

to

Discretionary Housing retirement

Name of Director Fees NEEIES bonuses  allowances schemes
EERIK

EEMY Fikn HE B FEEE AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Executive director YTES
Hung Yau Lit B
(also known as YY Hung) (X&)
(Chief Executive Officer)  (BEH/TE) - 8,700

- - 50 8,750

No remunerations were paid or receivable in respect of
accepting office as directors during the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: Nil).

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended
31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

No emoluments were paid or receivable in respect of
directors’ other services in connection with the management
of affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
during the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities (2015: Nil).

Except disclosed above, no director of the Company had
a material interest, directly or indirectly, in any significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company was or is a
party that subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2015: Nil).

REE2016F3A3NHILFE @ #HE
PLIE AR (T S A B Uk 1T {e) 3 B
(20164 : 4#) o

REZE2016F3A31THILFE @ HES
EREEMIE (2016545 : ) o

REZE2016F3A31BILFE - HERR
EEMARRHEMBRREAREES
E IR B A E M AR S B Bk R AR A 1R
B (20154 : £&) -

MENES  HEEREE - tER
HEEEATSZANER BUER
s E M E F (20154 : £) o

BREMFTEBEEIN  NARERHE
AR A BEE S ATRT S M A F R 3k
FREMEERDATENEMNER
X5 BHRERPEENEERS
B AMELE (201645 : ) o
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
MBERHE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the TN B AR SRS S B 2 B AR BB 14 O (E B

Group for the last four financial years, prepared on the basis as HWEEMNEHERXS  EERBGEHMZHT
set out herein, is set out below: PN

Year ended 31 March

BZE3AMHLFE
2016 2015 2014 2013
20165 20154 20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT B FIT
Results £ |
Revenue WA 5,081,774 4,192,009 3,802,971 2,903,273
Gross profit EH 1,254,147 979,384 790,350 626,262
Profit attributable to owner of ARAEBA
the Company B R T 442,054 337,806 166,911 128,094
Adjusted net profit for the year"*? FRETFAREG R 475,477 341,343 208,257 112,723
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 24.7% 23.4% 20.8% 21.6%
Net profit margin (%) FEFE (%) 8.7% 8.1% 4.4% 4.4%
Adjusted net profit margin (%)% ISR (%) " 9.4% 8.1% 4.4% 4.4%
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets EEBE 4,589,525 3,129,637 2,921,121 2,564,166
Total liabilities BEeE (1,922,573) (1,998,353)  (1,893,743)  (1,649,922)
Total equity EREE 2,666,952 1,131,284 1,027,378 914,244

Notes: P& -

(1) Adjusted net profit is derived by adding listing expenses and deducting (1) EAB{ANTEBMA ETHREZRNRITES
gains on derivative financial instruments and excluding the related tax BITAKGHESE  EP I IEEFRANE
impact from the net profit for the year. EORBR G E -

(2)  This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure that (20  FAREFRNIBBERBERUBES
is not required by, or presented in accordance with, HKFRSs and is 1 BEBMBREEANEER - NBER
therefore referred to as a “non-GAAP" financial measure. It is not a MEAVBREERGER - Bt - ELERE
measurement of the Group's financial performance under HKFRSs and [FERRERANMBEEIEIZT o LLITIFR
should not be considered as an alternative to profit from operations or any BEBUBHRELNGEAEENVIEREAD
other performance measures derived in accordance with HKFRSs or as an FE o WE D ERTERIERBEBMBRE
alternative to cash flows from operating activities or as a measure of the AE B A VA M S8 B A L R IR A
Group's liquidity. RIEERLEEEDHHRLRENE N BTN EE

KEENREBESNIER -
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